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INTRODUCTION

1, the Chairman of Public Accounts Committee, as authorised by
the Committee do present on their behalf this Hundred and Twenty-
Fifth Report of the Committee (Fifth Lok Sebhs) on the paragraphs
contained in the Report of Comptroller and Auditor General of India
for the year 1971.72, Union Government (Defence Services).

2. The Report of Comptroller & Auditor General of India for
the year 1971-72, Union Government (Defence Services) was laid
on the Table of the House on the 20th March, 1873. The Committee
examined paragraphs relating to the Ministry of Defence on the 1st,
ond and 3rd November, 1973. The Committee considered and final-
ised this Report at their sitting held on 10th April, 1974. Minutes of
these sittings form Part II* of the Report.

3. A statement showing the summary of the main conclusions|
recommendations of the Committee is appended to the Report (Ap-
pendix II). For facility of reference these have been rrinted in
thick type in the body of the Report.

4. The Committee place on record their appreciation of the assis-
tance rendered to them in the examination of these paragraphs by
the Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

5. The Committee would also like to express their thanks to the
officers of the Ministry of Defence for the cooperation extended by
them in giving information to the Committee.

JYOTIRMOY BOSU,

New Drwni;
April 15, 1974 Chairman,
Chaitra 25, 1898 (S). Public Accounts Committee.

ﬁ' Not printed (one cyclostyled copy lsid op the Table of the House and
Ve copies placed in the Parlisment Library).
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REPORT
PURCHASE OF BOATS
Audit Paragraph

1.1. A boat designed and developed by the Research and Deve-
lopment Organisation was accepted in 1962 for introduction into ser-
vice after extensive technical and user trials carried out during Feb-
ruary, 1957 to December, 1981. 1t was to replace an imported one
that was being used by the Arrny. The design of the new boat was
based on canvas hull containing a number of balloons to give desired
busyancy. It was intended to carry assault elements complete with
weapons in river crossing operations. The boat was also to be used
as a raft for taking across guns and light tracked carriers.

1.2. In November, 1962, three orders were placed by the Army
Headquarters on a public sector undertaking for supply of 880 boats
at the rate of Rs. 4157 per boat. These were supplied during July,
196¢ to October, 1964. Subsequently, during July, 1965 to Decem-
ber, 1968, orders were placed on this undertaking and four other
firms ‘A’, ‘B’, ‘C' and ‘D’ for supply of 1927 boats. The unit rate of
these boats, which were supplied during February, 1968 to Septem-
ber, 1969, ranged from Rs. 3800 to Rs. 4300.

1.3. The specifications laid down in November, 1962 for these boats
provided that all stitches on the hull below life line should be finish-
ed with leak-proof composition of an approved quality. In Novem-
ber, 1964 an amendment was issued to these specifications which re-
quired application of leak-proof compound to all stitches—both below
and above life line. Detailed specifications for the adhesive to be
used at the stitches were, however, not laid down. Consequently,
the public sector undertaking and the two firms ‘A’ and ‘B’ which
supplied in all 1776 boats during July, 1964 to December, 1967 used
certain adhesives, while the other two firms ‘C’ and ‘D’ which sup-
plied 811 boats during March, 1966 to September, 1969 used a differ-
ent adhesive (which is much costlier and is very effective for water-
proofing ordinary canvas).

14. In July, 1971 one Army unit reported to Army Headquarters
that all the 38 boats (supplied by the firms ‘C’ and ‘D’) held by it
were defective. On subsequent investigation in October, 1871 it was
found that of the 811 boats costing Rs. 32.93 lakhs supplied by the
firms ‘C* and ‘T’, 808 boats (37 with field units and 311 in stock in



an ordnance depot) costing about Rs. 24.68 lakhs were defective
The seams of all joints of the boats disintegrated when the boats
wereinﬂatedsndputinwaterutheunvnatthenamshadbe-
come brittle. Investigations *'-- 7=—“*:¢hat this was caused by oxidi-
sation of the adhesive used by these two firms to fix the seams of
the boats (due to lack of ¢Morine scteptory in the adhesive as chlo-
rine was liberated and hydrochloric acid was formed). The boags
supplied by the public sector undertaking and the firms ‘A’ and B’
in which a differetit adhesive wis used, did not suffer from this
defect.

1.5. The feasibility of repairing the defective boats was examined
by sending some of them to an Army Workshep but without suc-
cess. It was held by the Master General of Ordnance (in January,
1972) that there was no possibility of repairing the 608 defective
boats and that the remaining 203 boats, then held as serviceable,
supplied by those two firms were also likely to be beyond economi-
cal repair when they developed defects. In the meantime, instruc-
tions were issued by Army Headquarters in Nevember, 1971 to the
Ordsance Depot not to dispose ¢f the steck of imported boats which
had earlier besn declaved obeolete in April, 1971. If was found that
137 of these old boéts were in a serviceible condition and Axmy
Headquarters issued orders in December, 1971 for supply of these
boats to units to meet operational requiretnent and also initiated
action for getting 364 of these old boets repaired urgently.

1.6. The shelf life (before use) of the (indigenous) boats is 5
vears. Of the 811 boats supplied by firms ‘C’ and ‘D’ 250 had com-
pleted the 5 year perfod by May, 1971. The other 561 boats were
supplied between Octobier, 1967 and September, 1968. According to
the Ministry, the boats can be repaired at a cost of about Rs. 500

[Paragraph 10 of the Report of Comptroller and Auditor
General of India for the year 1971-72, Unfon Government
(Defenice Services)].

1.7. Asked why detailed specifications for adhesives were not
Taid down while placing orders for boats on different firms the
Scientific Adviser to the Ministry of Defence stated during evidence:
“The Bees wax -camnpesition was known to the pepple. who hagd ten-
dered: for it. However, at that time, some new adhesives had piso

mmmmmmmmwn .One of them
il tioned heye (Nonprene based). Bitumen adhesives etc. were
Also Jmown mdmottbﬂanreﬁldmdtobemhnthk,
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The Bees way composition was used #nd ho specifications were laid
down. If amybody had & better adfivsive, mit*bdﬁ‘ﬁenud Other-
wise,BeuWuman‘M" :

18. According to the Audit Paragraph

out of the 811 bcats sup-
plied by the firms ‘C’ and ‘D’ 08 Boats (‘im with field units and 311

in stock in an Ordnance depot) were found defective. THe Master
Generul of Ordnance, however, informed the Commaiftee during evi-
dence: “In all 2,587 boats were received by the Army on various.
indents on various firms....Of these 2587, we have at the moment
669 boats which are with the unite in a serviceable state. We have
another 444 boats in ordnance stocks which are not in a serviceable
state, but in a repairable state....I cammot ciategorically state that
out of 444 boats, the number of boats used or not used.”

19. The Scientific Adviser stated that the defects were due not
only to the wrong adhesives being used but to something else also.
About the defects found in the baats besides the use of '@ wrong type
of adhesive, the Director Genera} of Inspection stated: “The coven
ing of these boats is in canvas. This canvas, like any organic mate-
rial, is subject to deterioration due to sge, due o exposure to sur-
light, due to contact with water, due to funmgal attack, due to mois-
ture and a host of other reasons. The fabrics are subject tc decay
or subject to tendering in course of time. Presumably, in some of
these boats it was found that where Neopderse had beéen used there
has been a little more tendering in those places. But even otherwise,
textiles do deteriorate due to age etc. It is a normal process.”

1.10. The Committee wanted to know whether there was some
defect in manufecturing aiso, the Scientifie Adviser stated during
evidence: “Five years is the sielf life that was Presctibed by us
when the boats were manufactuved, taking into accoumt ‘the natural
process of deterioration. But ifthe boats sre Youghly uded. the can-
vas would deteriorate much faster. Therefore. therfe are, apart
from the natural causes of deterioration, deterioration due to rough
use. If the shelf life is 5} years, if they are used under various
circumetances, the statistiosl avérage Bfe’ woulil' Bé“le¥s than five
years. My papess do not siow ‘whéefiier wtre““a,ﬂ die to Neo-
prene, but they ‘were found to be ddf when- we examined
them.” .

1.11. With regard to the Procurement of boats, the Department of
Supply hive stated: “In regard to the procuremsent of 811 boals,
advance samples were in esch case approved by the Defence AHSP,
inspecwdmdmpudbyl)dm Inspectorate amd ultimately
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.against all the contracts, the entire quantity was accepted by the res-
‘pective consignees to their satisfaction and after ‘getting their ap-
proval in this regard, the delivery dates were regularised.:

It was for the inspectorate to have detected any subltaadard
‘material use during the process of inspection,”

. 1.12. Explaining the background about the use of Neoprene ad-
hesive for the boats, the representative of R&D has stated: “In 1964,
we started using Bees Wax. That was the most commonly avail-
able adhesive, This comes into contact with the canvass cloth and
‘the metallic parts. Cloth is an organic material. The adhesive has
to be neutral. When we started using it, Bees Wax was the only
neutral adhesive available to R&D. As we went on, the use of Neo-
‘prene came in a long way and it was available in the country. It is

very widely known and is used in all water proofing compositions

-for other purposes also. The only thing is that it is chlorine based

adhesive. The Neoprene looks colourless as it is used and it remains

.colourless for two-three years, unless you accelerate the action of

degradation. In the course of three-four years, you see a faint col-
-gurisation. And from that you can make out that the adhesive -is
slightly deteriorating and this process of deterioration is based on
-the release of hydro-chloric acid. At the time when the adhesive
-was used, and also when inspected, one could not detect that there
was anything wrong, and since the adhesive was very widely used.
we thought that it was the right type of adhesive. One of the things
to prevent chlorine reaction is to add zinc oxide. It will delay the
reaction. It is not expensive and we assumed that this was automa-
tically used. But visual inspection or by just taking the quality of
the adhesives, one could not say whether it is going to deteriorate
4n two-three or four years. Therefore, this adhesive was accepted
“in good faith. 1t is much better. It is twenty times more expensive
‘than the other one. The deterioration can be delayed if zinc oxide

is used along with the adhesive. Baut it just happened that in the

-course of 3-4 years, when the boats were used, the deterioration re-

-action took place and the tendering of the cloth occurred.”

ST

113. The Scientific Adviser admitted during evidence that “we
-did not know at that time that this particular defect could arise in
Neoprene....Now that we have studied this problem, we know that,
‘in future, if we use Neoprene, particularly in contact with metal,
“we have to use some acceptor.”

1.14. When asked why Neoprene was allowed in preference to
‘Bees Wax used earlier, the representative of R&D stated: “At that
ime, the adhesive which we were using and which was fairly good
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-and available in large quantities was bees wax. . But we experienc-
-ed a slight diffloulty in using this bees wax because it 1s not quite
-a good adhesive material and the bees wax has also indicated a very
slow rate of water seepage. But it was not 100 per cent water-proof.
It wss on account of that that we accepted a better adhesive which
is the neoprene based wax.” .

1.15. The Committee enquired whether the Ministry of Defence
were aware of the fact that Neoprene based adhesive which was not
properly neutralised was used by firm ‘C’ and ‘D’ and if not, when
‘the Ministry came to know of this requirement. The Ministry of
Defence, in a note, has submitted: “R&D Organisation was not
-aware of the fact that Neoprene based adhesive which was not pro-
perly neutralised was used by Messrs....and Messrs. .. .at the time
of manufacture of boats. R&D Organisation came to know of this
defect only when chemical analysis was carried out during Septem-
‘ber, 1972 as part of investigation to find out the causes of this fail-
‘ure.”

1.16. In the absence of full knowledge ;bout the Neoprene, the
‘Committee asked whether the Technical Committee of Research
and Development Organisation of Ministry of Defence had approved
Ats use. The Ministry of Defence in a note has stated: “There is
nothing on record to show whether approval to use neoprene based
adhesive was given by the Establishment (Technical Committee) to
the firm.”

1.17. The Scientific Adviser admitted during evidence that they
‘had relied on the text book knowledge that Neoprene was better
adhesive and it was unfortnate that they did not test it whether it
‘was fully neutralised. It should have been done.

1.18. The Committee enquired whether the boats where neoprene-
‘based adhesive was used were tested in water for the required
length of time. It was stated during evidence that the boats were
not tested for the required length of time—but they were tested in
water for a period of one hour for any leakage.

1.19. The Committee drew attention to the following note writ-
‘ten by the Ministry of Defence on the 25th September, 1972 regard-
ing advantages of the Neoprene-based adhesive: “Necprene based
adhesive, though much costlier, has been used by the two firms
Mfs..ooo.onn. and Mys........... for the following reasons:

(a) It has excellent waterproofing and weather resisting pro-
perties, T
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(b) On oumdoor exposire fabrick vosted: withy: this - compound’
remain in good condition #ven for « peviod tpto ten years.

(c) Conted fabrics are Yesfstarit to the' afflon of sunlight ds
well as ozone, o

(d) This adhesive is compatible with tmtreated canvas.”.

The Committee wanted to khow how this note comie to be written
in the face of complaints received in 1871. The Ministry of De-
ferice stated in a note: “Nedprene based adhesive if properly neut-
ralised doés not have corrosive effect. The deterioration of canvas.
in this particular case¢ has happened due to low percentage of chlo-
rine accodiptors contained 'in the adhesive thus resulting in free
chiorine which formed into hydro-chloric aecid which in turn attacked
the canvas.”

1.20. The Committee were informed during evidence that the life
expectancy of the boat for 5 years was decided in mid fifties and
no review of it had singe been done. Asked whether in view of the
complaints it was going to be reviewed, the witness stated. “I would
like to explain that it took some time to locate what the defect was
After that we know that this boat was not going to be held in stock
and a new design was going to be inducted. 1 admit that we have
not dotie an exercise of re-evaluating the life expetancy of the boat
but ...... the amount of exercise necessary is perhaps not justified
by the very fact that the boat is going out of use in the course of
the next year, when the present boats are finishing their life.”

1.21. It was stated that regular inspection of boats were carried
out and regular reports were sent to the Statistical Officer. Asked
why a large number of boats were found fo be défeetive during the
special investigation made after the complaints were received in
1971, the Engineer-in-Chief replied: “It is very difficult to explain
because, as 1 mentioned, regular inspections are carried out, and the
boats are tested and in every report, we report, to. the MGO, that so
many of them have become unservicesble and he is required to
make issues to replace those unserviceable ones.”

1.22. The Committee were informed that no warranty clause was
iacluded in the contracts with firms ‘C’ and “D’. The Director,
DGS&D, explained: “The warranty clatige is ineltided fn respect
of-those items where defects can come to light only whien the stores
are put to use and not before by visual or laborstory inspection.
The boats did not come under this category. ‘All the suppliers sup-

; . . fence
plied the boats after the pilot samples were spproved by the De
Inspeclorate. In respect of such i&mé, we dﬁb’%”ﬁ#“@ggga {warranty
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clause unless tt is ssked for by the indemior or the Deferice Ins-
pectorate. They 4id wot ask for 1 elther at the indenting stage or
at a later stage.” .o ) i

In reply to anvther guestion about the necessity of such a clause,
the witness stated: “It is unnecessary.... Any firm can be sued
for a breach of warranty. In this case, we could not do anything
with the supplier ag they supplied stores to specifications.”

1.23. Asked whether any log beok or history sheets for these
boats were kept, the Master General of Ordnance submitted dur-
ing evidence: *“We have been using boats before and that has never
been the practice to the best of my knowledge. It is only for machi-
nery which is fairly expengive that that is done because the amount
of money that you will have to spend on making and maintaining
log books would not really be commensurate with the advantages
that one may derive from it.” The witness however, admitted that
log books were being maintained for certain less costly items like
motor cycles, trailers and mules etc.

124, The Ministry of Defence had informed the Audit that the
boats could be repaired at a cost of about Rs. 500 each. Asked about
the number of boats repaired so far and their cost, the Ministry of
Defence, in a note furnished to the Committee, stated: “Repair of
the boats found defective an account of use of neoprene base adhe-
sive is proposed to be undertaken now. Sanction has been accord-
ed for the repair of 10 boats as an experimental measure at ar
estimated cost of Rs. 1,000 each. Actual cost of repairs of the boats
will be known only on receipt of quotations which have already
been invited. It may be mentioned that the estimate of Rs. 500
per boat was based on patch repair while Rs. 1,000 npw estimated in-
volves replacement of the entire canvas of each boat as desired by
the users.”

In a subseq:uw; mtag, the Ministry of Defence, haye informed
the Committee; YGoverpment sanction was accarded for repair of
Toats mmm;#k.«,mmﬁw 10 at, the &ase of Rs. 1,000 ga;:;

enders werg ‘ from, foyr firms, against which two fi

quoted at the rate?gt )‘% 4@ and Rs. 4,338 respectively. Repairs
involve complete replacement of canvas hull and bottom. The origi-
nal cost of these boats when ed in 1964 to 1968 ranged between
Rs. 3300 4hd Ra. %300 "% two fiéms who have qubted rates !:;
repairs ASw, Ral WIS S0fpIl thess bouty s per the prices quot

above. ' "Whid ‘tifgh 'Set oF is due % ﬂ.ﬁm&aw h the vost
‘of canvas and overheads. '



In view .of the foregoing, when the yepair cost equates with the:
procurement. rate, the Chief of the Army -Staff has decided not tor
pursue the repair of these boats and declare then as obmplete.” - .

1.25. Asked about the cost analysis of the re-ysable components.
of the boat, like aluminium, the Ministry of Defence, in a note,
have stated: “The materials for the fabrication of boat assault pneu~
matic Mk.I comprise canvas, aluminiym strakes rubber balloons and
cordages. The boats when declared beyond economical repairs by
the Technical authorities are disposed of through salvage. The boats
on receipt in the salvage Depot as unserviceable are dismantled and
the materials involved taken out and put in the respective stack al-
ready containing the said material. In the case of these bcats,
canvas rubber balloons and cordages have no sale value. As regards
aluminjum content the same is merged with the existing stock held
in the salvage and disposed of. No separate account of aluminjum.
recovered from the boats is maintained and no cost thereof can be
given.”

1.26. An assault boat was designed and developed by the Re-
search and Development Organisation to replace an imported one and
it was accepted in 1962 for introduction into service. 2587 boats of
this type were procured during July 1964 to September 1565 siown
four firms and a public sector undertaking at the rate ranging frem
Rs. 3800 to Rs. 4300 per boat. On receipt of a complaint from ove
Army Unit in July 1971 that all the boats held by it, which were sup-
plied by two firms, were defective, the matter was investigated in
October, 1971 and found that of 811 boat costing Rs, 32.92 lakhs
supplied by the two firms 608 boats (297 with field units and 311
in stock in an Ordnance Depot) were defective. The seams of all
joints of the boats disintegrated when the boats were inflated and
put in water at the canvas at the seams had become brittle. Investi-
gations disclosed that this was caused by Oxidisation of the adhe-
sive used by these two firms to fix the seams of the boats. As the
cost of repair invelving complete replacement of canvas hull and
bottom would be equal to the cost of procurement of these bonts
it had been decided to declare them as obsolete. It was held by the
Master General of Ordnance in January 1972 that the remaining
203 boats were also likely to be beyond economical repair when they
developed defects.

It is ullhmuute that all this happened at a time when:
the Army needed these boats most. The Committee are very dis-
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s o stiaiued wanlsmet 'l Gown 4By Y h and
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(ii) i upbctlentions’ Nad Uéwi 1l ' Woveniber, 1968 provided
thathw :gtdm M be W with, lealprool composi-
" tholn ,,.:ﬂln fwe. Sirms, comeerned.
uséd ’éo;“'éne hetesn the others used.
Bee’s wax wlnch was also used by the Research and
,Developmeny, Opgapisation. Vniortsmmely there is etated
,..ta g, mothing op, record 40 shew, whethey approtel.to use
, neoprene baged adbggive was,given by. she Establishment

"' (Technical. Committee) fo the two, firms, '
(iii) In respect of the boats protured advamce samples were in
+ pag¢h cage approved by the Developmewt; inspected and’
. accepted hy Defence Inspectorste wand entire quantity
was accepted by the ‘mespective cemsignees to their satis-
faction, It was assamed that the mecessary chiorine aceep-
tor was autematically wused along with adhesive. The
Scientific Adviser admitted that it was unfortunate that
they did not test the adhesive whether it was fully neutra-

-4t lised and that it should have been done,

(iv) No warranty clause was included im the coniracts. The
Commiitee were informed by the representative of the
DGS&D that the warranty clause is included in respect
of those items where defects can come to light only when
the stores are put to use and that in this case neither

‘ the indentor nor the Defence Inspectorate asked for a
warranty clause. Nq,action could be taken against the
firm as they supplied stores to speclﬁcatlons It is surpris-
ing that the Defence Department did not take this normal
precaution especially becapse no detailed specifications
for the a(ﬂu;sive were laid down by the Research and
Development Orgamsatmn and it was admittedly not pos-
sible to de(en;mne by usual inspection whether the adhe-
sive used was going to ﬂetenontg ,

(v) Althoygh all the boats ware .spppliod hy the two firms
during February, 1966 to September 1909 it required an
investigation in October 1971 on the basis of a complaint
from o single Ay Unit, to flnd. gut thal’ ag thany as
908 - bouts Wers defocfive The defeets olglt to have
come te: wolite nianh eovlier and in ¢he nevmal course of
Amapostion 1n - thie -Degety and: Uaite, R -4 contenided’ that
thin defbcts wass sibtishd enly.wilen the honts were flont-
lod: and  osild et 'hive been distobered carliez.’ The

4
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127. The e.:;::-wm taase . bl o that out
of the 2587 bugys -::‘:.’..._,-ﬂyubmww' ‘ condition,
Thoy bavbk mot dien (olg 0 to Sow miny wvi.;muebuts

hdbeenumnymw!&hwmmmhm.u being
maintsined fer thees deats alihough for fesy cently Mems like
motor cysles, srailess apd wwiles they are mglttainsd. The Commit-
tee consider it esspmtial 4o == = log bosky for infigencusly deve-
loped equipments of this kind whith will help to study theint per-
formance sud to determine the actusl fife i use. Such performance

dats may also be useful in dechling upon modtfications in the designs
to improve perfermance.

1.28. According to the representative of the Research and Deve-
lopment Organisation even Bees wax is not quite a good adhesive
material and it hag also indicajed a very slow rate of water seepage.
The Committee, however, are not very clear as to how many boats
where this adhesive was used alsq developed defects They learn that
a different adhesive viz. Bitmarin No. 3 was used in the imported
assault boat and that this was known o the Research and Develop-
ment Organisation whep the indigenous development of the boat
was undertaken as early as 1849, However, theye is stated to be
nothing on the file ‘to hﬁtate why this adhesive was not used by the
organisaﬁon. Committee un&utand that & new design of the

oat is goihg tgodm:ed yiew of the f’cf that the Bees wax
ZI regarded as nmm gwd and complq‘e‘y waterprogf and the
neoprene yve Is twenty times mo ) tl th, Committee
desire that ﬁeoeuc\k #nd %‘u fopment brg_n;iution ahould find
out a cheaper but effective as we u lﬁ«ﬁgenonsly availalvle adhesive
for the newly dedgheoll Bolts W hwmy d» not seem
»unmmmurg_i‘qu . . o

+ 1.20. Whe: Casteniiies, gidte : thee the M@“' poriud> for these
indigenons hiypts wos! fixedith wibfiliiby s dve tpodryNaking into
uuuu — mwwmmrmw the

Togid-bas benw i AA__MM e 2y many
46 137wl ——-2-heifds which Add coslichBoen Besinked ohsolete
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in April, IST1, weve found stii in serviceable condition and these
‘wrgre- isstiedl to-unlis te meet operstional requirement in December,
1971 If these bouts which must have been impoited Iong before 1962,

were good ensugh even nfter 10 years, the Committee see no reason
why the indigenous ones sheuld not Iast longer than 5 years.

1.30. What has been stated in the above paragraphs adds up to a
sitaation in an important organisation of the Defence Ministry which
caunot but cause concern. The preseat procedures for the storage
inspection and issue df vital stores are such that the unusability of a
vital item may not be discovered until it is required for operational
use. It does not require much imagination to see what a serious situa-
tion this could land the country’s armed forces in. The Committee
therefore, while expressing their grave concern at the somewhat
mechanical, lackadaisical and unimaginative attitude that the Minis-
&ry’s spokesman showed, would strongly urge the Ministry to carry
out a thorough review of the procedures relating to acceptance of
operational stores, their maintenance during storage and their ins-
pection before issue to ensure that they are in the state of efficiency
they should be.

1.31. The Commiitee also consider ¢that the Research and Develop-
ment Organisation does not appear to be kept in the close touch
that it should be in respect particularly of items of stores, the pro-
duction of which is newly established in the country, throughout
their life, shelf life or life in actual use,

The Committee cannot but deprecate the slackness and unprepa-
redness of a vital organisation like Defence Department and its
Research and Development Organisation.

Purchase of timber
Audit Paragravh

1.32. Against an indent placed by Naval Headquarters in August,
1969, for procurement of teak logs required for manufacture of boats,
the Director General, Supplies and Disposals, concluded a contract
with a firm (in station ‘O’) in May, 1970 for supply of 304 cubic
meters of teak logs at a cost of Rs. 3.5 lakhs, Out of this, 250 cubic
meters were to be despatched to a naval stores depot, ‘A’ at station
O’ and the rest to another naval gtores depot ‘B’ at a different station.
‘The agreement with the firm provided for inspection of the logs by
Defence Inspector of General Stores at the firm’s premises, 80 per
‘cent payment on, proof of inspection and despatch and the balance 10
.per cent on receipt -of stores by the consignee in good condition. It

369 1.8—2
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wag, qeuded a subge,quwt(mectmdmm X thw' the
S rve 0}’, of tom val Dackiiacd At station ‘Gpshould be-assoets-

wi Y; the em tar of Geperal Sianes mhile catrying ‘dut
the 1ﬁspect19n A8, per. the agrgement,, galivesy., of vtherdogs.was - 4o
‘beé compieied .b ,‘%ﬂ}th gb;ua;y,, A9 ex eardiax. .ot !

, 133, The, fim tendexed the logh miednt: for depot *B’ fér/inspection
in two 1gtp-vythe firsd Jodin. Map, 1970 and: the:weconyd: in Febiuary,
'1971. Sixty logs mewsusing 53038 cubli meters: whieh were aécepted
by the,Defence Inspeptor, were reosined in depot-‘B! during July,
1970 and, March, 1971, Altkough seme: of those' logs were' foung by
tb,a Naval authorities jo be mot of the requisite .quality, they were
acqu;pd, on the styength .of the opinion of the professidnal authority
(ie,,. Commmanding Officer of 4he Base Repair Oragamiation at the
station), The latter, who had tested the logs, had recomimended their
acceptance as he had thought that the overall percentage of wastage
due to conversion wap not likely to exceed the permissible limit.
Actuglly, 30 logs were converted between September 197 and July,
1972 and no wastage beyond permisgible limit was noticed.

1.34. The logs intendeqd for depot ‘A’ were tendered for inspection
in -three lots—the first in December, 1970 and the second and third
in February, 1971, These were inspected in the firm’s premises by
the Defeuce Inspector and 266 logs measuring 249.045 cubic meters
which were accepted by him were reeeived in depot ‘A’ during
January, 1971 to June, 1971. y ‘

1.35. On receipt of the first consignment of 48 logs in January,
1971 by depot ‘A’, the Surveyor of Stores of the Navy found on inspec-
tion on 15th March, 1971 that most of the logs had defects. Conse-
quently, these logs were rejected by the naval authorities at the
station and this was reported to Naval Headquarters in April, 1971.
The remaining 208 logs were received in the depot during March,
1971 to June, 1971. As the instance of Naval Headquarters, the Direc-
tor of Inspection (General Stores), Department of Defence Produc-
tion, ordered in August, 1971 re-inspection of the logs jointly by the
Inspector of General Btores at the station ang also by the Surveyor
of Stores of the Navy. Accordingly, all the logs were re-inspected by
a joint team during October and November, 1971 when it was found
that, barring a few, the logs fell short of the requirement mainly
due to presence of natura] defects, i.e., hollow centres, and other
defects such as flutes, taper, wounds, knots, etc., beyond permissible
limits. In addition, a good percentage of the logs was found to have
progressive drying defects, i.e., splits and surface cracks and biologi-
c3] defects, i.e., decay and insect attacks of serious mature. This was
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intimated by the Naval authorities at the station to Naval Headquar-
ters in November, 1971. The latter brought the matter to the notice of
the Director of Inspection (General Stores) in December, 1971, The
Director General, Supplies and Disposals, was then apprised of the
position ha January, 1972 by Naval Headquerters ‘

1.96. In Febraury, 1972, the Director General, Supplies and Dis-
posals, informed the firm that all the logs supplied by it to depot:
‘A’ had been rejected and requested their early replacement. The
supplying firm to which Rs. 2.58 lakhs (representing 90 per cent of
the cost of supplies) had already been paid did not accept the rejec-
tion of the logs (February, 1972). It coniended, inter alig, that alL
the logs were inspected and accepted by the Defence inspectorate,
the source of supply was the same, inspection was carried out by
the same officer and that the standard of acceptance wag also the
same.

1.37. A meeting was arranged in July, 1972 in the Directorate
General of Supplies and Disposals with the supplier. As a result
of the discussion, the firm agreed to replace only 10 logs as in its
opinion not more than 10 logs could have defects; alternatively, it
was ready to compensate to the extent of Rs. 10,000 for the whole
transaction. As this proposal was not acceptable to Naval Head-
quarters, another meeting was held in September, 1972 and, on much
persuasion, the supplier finally agreed to pay, as a compromise offer,,
Rs. 15,000 as compengation. The Director General, Supplies and
Disposals, intimated (December, 1972) that, the firm had since for-
warded its formal offer in the form of a notice to settle the case
finally by paying it the balance amount of its 10 per cent claim after
deducting Rs. 15,000 and that it had given a notice of eight weeks
from the date of its offer, i.e., 3rd December, 1972.

1.38. In the meantime, all the logs received (more than 18 months
ago) in depot ‘A’ far manufacture of boats are lying unutilised. The
Ministry of Defence intimated (January, 1973) that a board of en-
quiry had been constituted tp investigate the entire matter pertain-
ing to the inspection of the logs in question. ,

[Paragraph 11 of the Report of Comptroller and Auditor General of
India for the year 1971-72, Union Government (Defence Services)].

1.39. The Deputy Director General, DGS&D informed the Com~
mittee during evidence that out of the seven gquotations received
against the tender, the firm’s quotation was the second lowest.
Asked why the lowest tender was not accepted, the witness deposed.
“The lowest was that of....and Co. Apart from the unacceptable
terms, thefr capacity was not recommended by the Defence Inspec-
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torwte’: S0 we had to pass over that offer and we went into the se-
vcond lawest tender.” o

43

1

xl 40, The Committee were informed that the Naval Headquarters
in a letter dated 12th August, 1969 had requested the DGS&D that
in regard to the inspection of teak logs procured from the trade
against this indent, the Surveyor of Stores, Naval Dockyard, Bom-
bay, should be the Inspectng Officer and not the Inspector of the
Inspectorate of General Stores.

1.41. The Committee were informed that the Department of Sup-
ply had explained (January, 1973): “In the A/T, inspection by
1.G.S. was stipulated, although in the tender enquiry, the inspection
was indicated to be carried out by the Surveyor of Stores, Naval
Dockyard, Bombay. Naval Headquarters, subsequently, pointed out
on 29th May, 1970 that this stipulation was not in line with their
instructions. The firm were approached for the change in inspec-
tion authority to the Surveyor of Stores. Naval Dockyard, Bombay,
but they did not agree to this suggestion. In the interest of supplies,
a meeting was held on 23rd October, 1970 in D.G.S. & D., where the
representative of the Naval Headquarters were also invited. Tt
‘was decided in this meeting that in view of the attitude of the
firm, the status quo should be maintained, but that the Surveyor
«of Stores, Naval Dockyard, Bombay should be associated
‘with the Inspector, IGS of the area concerned, while carrying out
the inspection.”

1.42. The Secretary, Ministry of Defence stated during evidence:
“In the tender enquiry floated by the DGS & D, which was done on
16th August, 1969, they did indicate the Surveyor of Naval Stores
as the Inspector. But in the tender offer that was made by the firm,
they indicated only the Inspector of General Stores and not the
Surveyor of Naval Stores. Unfortunately, there has been a little
slip that it was not noticed. Although the advertisement said that
the Inspector would be the Surveyor of Naval Stores, the firm had
tendered on the basis that the inspector would be the Inspector of
General Stores. This was not noticed by the DGS & D.”

The witness agreed that it was not in order for the firm in the
tender offer to put in a mention of their own choice of the Inspec-
torate. In reply to a question as to how did it escape notice, the
‘witness thated that it was a slip and DGS & D were taking neces-
sary action against the persons concerned with the checking of the
tender offer in accordance with the tender enquiry. He went on to
say: “Here I would like to plead. before you that there was a bona-
fide mistake on the part of the D.G.S. & D.. When the mistake was
detected, that in the contract the Inspector of General Stores was
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mentioned, the Naval Headquarters drew the attention of the D.G.S.
& D., and he promptly made an effort to change the terms of the
contract to inspection by the Surveyor of Naval Stores, but the firm
would not agree.” Aseked about the reasons for not agreeing to
inspection by Naval Dockyard, the witness stated: “the supplier
perhaps had his own reasons for choosing the Inspector of General
Stores. He perhaps expected a better deal” The witness further
deposed: “When the first log was received in Bombay, they noticed
that the Surveyor of Naval Dockyard had not signed the inspection
report. They took the matter with their headquarters and the head-
quarters took it up with the DPIN. He took it up with the DGS &
D. All this took a lot of time. In between, what happened was that
all the lots had been inspected and despatched. Unfortunately, the
Surveyor of Naval Stores could not be associated with any inspec-
tion of the logs which were supposed to go to Bombay or Cochin.”

1.43. The Committee desired to know whether a copy of the letter
dated 12th August, 1969 of the Naval Headquarters regarding the
insepction of the logs was sent to Cochin. The Defence Secretary

stated: “The letter of 12th August, 1969 was also sent to the Naval
Stores Officer, Cochin.”

1.44. The Committee desired to know that when it was decided’
at the meeting held on 23rd October, 1970 in the office of DGS & D
that although technically the Inspector of General Stores would re-
main, the Surveyor of Naval Headquarters would also be associated
with the inspection, why he was not subsequently associated. The
witness replied: “The minutes of the meeting were conveyed by the
DGS & D to Naval Headquaters, actually to the Director of Produc-
tion and Inspection, Naval Stores. They reported tc him. They
also sent a copy of this to the Chief Inspector of General Stores at
Kanpur. But, this communication did not go to the Inspector of
General Stores who was the party concerned. The subsequent ac-
tion was taken by the Director of Production and Inspection, on the
naval side, that is, an Officer of the Director of DGI. What he did
was, he communicated these instructions to the Chief Inspector cf
General Stores, Kanpur, then to the Inspectorate of General Storesz,
Calcutta. Unfortunately, they did not send a copy to the Inspector-
ate of General Stores, who was the proper authority. That is why,
I said there has been a slip.” Asked whether jt was deliberate slip,
the Defence Secretary deposed: ‘“Unfortunately, we have not been

able to put our finger on the real trouble spot, and so we say that
there has been a slip.”

145, The attention of the witness was invited to a letter from
DGS & D, New Delhi dated the 30th October, 1870 to the Directorate
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©f Production and ‘Inspectxon (Naval), .New Delhi at the bottom ol
‘which it was stated o

“Copy to:

1. Dlreg:tor of Stores Naval Headquarters, New Delhi. This
is with reference to the discussion held in the meeting on
20th October, 1979. :

2. IGS, Kanpur. Reference letter No. C./1581/70/GS/5, dated

5th October, 1970. He is also requested that the Surveyor

* of Stores, Naval Dockyard, Bombay may be associated for
all future inspection of logs to be offered by the firm.”

In reply, the witness stated: “The second endorsement was real-
ly to CIGS, but my personal judgment is that he should have passed
it on to the L.G.S. They are both in Kanpur.

The Director General of Inspection added: “I am responsible for
CIGS and DPIN. This letter did indeed go to the CIGS. We asked
the CIGS what exactly happened about it ‘and why he took six
weeks to communicate on this. We gave the explanation that he
noticed that one other endorsee, apart from him, was an Inspector.
The letter from the DGS & D dated the 30th October did not reach
the CIGS. He communicated so to the DPIN soon after he got the
DPIN’s letter. We have verified through the records of the CIGS
and we find that it is quite correct. He did not make it as an after
thought; nothing like that. Well before that he had communicated
that he did not receive this letter.”

The witness also clarified that the CIGS in his letter No. C/1581/
70/GS/5 dated 5th October, 1970 had taken up the discrepancy in
the Inspecting authority as mentioned in the AT.

1.46. It has been stated that 60 logs accepted by the Defence In-
spector were received at Cochin during July, 1970 and March, 1971
Although some of these logs were found -by the Naval authorities
to be not of the requisite quality, they were accepted on the strength
of the opimion of professional authority of officer-in-charge of the
Base Repair Organisation at Cochin, who recommended their ac-
ceptance as he had thought that the overall percentage of wastage
due to conversion was not likely to exceed the permissible limit of
40 per cent. Asked how many had been converted out of 60 logs
received in the depot and what was the actual percentage of wast-
age noticed, the Ministry of Defence, in a note, have stated: “Out of
60 logs, 40 logs were converted and percentage of wastage noticed
ranges from 22 per cent to 36.8 per cent. No further conversion of
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the remaining logs ‘is being undertaken ben'g.g the materxal ob]ects
of an Enquity by the: Supeﬂf:tendent of Police, CB.L, S.P.E., Cochin
ggamst thh mmignmt tecéived at Cochin.”

[l

1.47. The D.IG,, CB.I, informed the Comrmttee during evidence:
“One of our o!ﬁeem received ihformation in July 1972 that certain
sub-standard timber was actepted by the Deputy Inspector-General,
Stores, Jabalpur and was supplied be the Naval Store Dockyard in
Bombay and that the naval dockyard had not accepted the material
and the material was lying unused. On reteipt of this information,
we ‘had informal inquiries made from the Bombay ‘branch.... This
report also diselosed that the Department concetned had already
started disciplinary action against the officer concerned who was
responsible for this inspection and acceptance of sub-standard mate-
rial. When this report was received, as is the normal practice with
us, we made informal inquiries with the Ministry and asked them
whether they would like us to continue our making the inquiries
since they had already started departmental action. In December,
1972, we were informed that a probe by the CBI was not considered
necessary, as disciplinary action had already been started. In
November, 1972, another officer gave information about the same
supply of timber, and in that, he also mentioned about the 54 c.m.
that had been supplied to the Cochin Naval Dockyard. This time, the
inquiry was being dealt with by another unit....Our Cochin Office
also informed that at the consignee’s end, there was no inspection
and the logs had been accepted as the professional authority there
had said that the defects were within the tolerance limit allowed
by the inspecting authority, that is the Deputy Inspector-General
Stores.... So this information also has not been pursued by us be-
cause we have been under the impression that the Director of In-
spection—General Stores, was making the inquiry.”

1.48. As regards the CBI enquiry, Defence “Secretary deposed:
“There are two agencies here against whom there can be some doubt
about their efficiency. One was the inspection organisation who did
the work of inspection at Raipur at the premises of the supplier.
The second part was, why did the Cochin people not realise that
there was some defect in the timber. Between the CBI and the
Ministry there was a verbal talk in respect of the first part, which
is factually correct, that the Department of Defence Production and
the Ministry of Defence had initiated action against the officers who
did the inspection at the supplier’s premises at Raipur and that the
CBI need not proceed with it since we were taking departmental
action. But, it seems, there was a contusion in the mind of the CBI
and they did not proceed further about Cochin also; they thought
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that this was also a part of that; they do not know the inner works-
ing of the Ministry. Regarding the second part, my present infor-
mation is that they thought that the. defect was within the permis-

sible limit. In my opinion, a little probe is necessary. Whether the
CBI do it or not, we will cesginly do it.”

In a subsequent note, the Ministry of Defence have informed:
“....the CB.I. authorities were requested to take up the case for
investigation. In order to avoid any loss of the timber due to deter-
joration in storage, they have been specially requested to complete
the investigation as quickly as possible. They have since registered
a case formally and the matter is under their investigation. At their
instance, this Ministry has issued instructions to all concerned to

hand over the connected files to the C.B.1’s representative to facili-
tate the inquiry.

As regards the joint inspection of logs during October-Novemter,
1971, the Defence Secretary stated that “there was a difference of
opinion between the General Stores Inspectorate and the Surveyor
of Naval Stores. The D.G.1. Organisation ultimately upheld the
opinion of the Surveyor of Naval Stores. They overruled the opi-
nion of the Inspectorate of General Stores.”

1.49. According to the Audit Paragraph, the supplier had agre-
to pay, as a compromise offer, Rs. 15,000 as compensation. The Com-
mittee understood that according to the Ministry of Law, the pur-
chaser would have to ascertain the difference between the actual
value of sub-standard stores supplied and value of the stores, if they
were according to the terms and conditions of the contract to find
out whether the amount offered by the contractor approximated
with the damage calculated. Asked about the amount of damage<
computed by the Naval authorities, the Ministry of Defence, in a
note, stated: “Based on the technical appreciation of the Board of
Enquiry ordered by the Director of Inspection (General Stores;
NHQ have recommended to the DGS & D as under:

(a) Logs belonging to Class I to be accepted.

(b) As regards the remaining, DGS & D should negotiate with
the firm for the recovery of cost taking into consideration
prevailing price in the market at the time of acceptance
of the Logs for Class 11, Class III and below. At any rate

the recovery from the firm ghould not fall below Rs. 22,000
on this account.

(c) Recovery should also be made as deemed fit by DGS & U

for breach of contract consequent on the firm’s failure ¢
supply stores to contracted standard.”
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When enquired about the present position of the case, the Min-
istry of Defence informed in a note: - “The case has not been finally
settled. DGS. & D has intimated that the supplier has since referred
the case to arbitration for settlement of dispute having withdrawn

his earlier offer of Rs. 15,000 as compensation. The arbitration
award is awaited.”

About the outcome of arbitration, the Ministry of Defence, in a
subsequent note, have stated that the next date for filing the counter
statement has been fixed as 30th January, 1974 and the final outcome

of the arbitration proceedings would be intimated in due course of
time.

1.50. Regarding the constitution of Board of Enquiry to investi-
gate the entire matter pertaining to the inspection of the logs, the
Ministry of Defence, in a note (March, 1973) intimated: “The find-
ings of the Board of Inquiry appointed to enquire into the matter
pertaining to the inspection of the logs in question show that the
supply, by and large, did not conform to the specification indicated
in the Acceptance of Tender. The Board has fixed the responsibi-
lity for this lapse on the inspection staff who carried out the inspec-
tion before despatch. The DIGS has accepted the findings of the

Board and is taking disciplinary action against the inspection staff
responsible.

As regards delay on the part of consignee in rejecting the logs
and intimating the same to the DGS & D; and allowing the logs re-
ceived in the depot to remain unutilised for more than 18 months,
NHQ have been requested to carry out a high level investigation
urgently and submit a detailed report to this Ministry. The
investigation inter alia would cover also the circumstances in which
the logs were left in the open and why adequate measures were not
taken to stack the logs in a proper place free from exposure to cli-
matic conditions. Suitable measures will be taken on receipt of the
detailed report from Naval Headquarters.”

1.51. As regards the results of the high level investigations by the
Naval Headquarters regarding the lapses on the part of the ccn-
signee, the Ministry of Defence have stated in a note: “The high
level investigation carried out by a Board of Enquiry has concluded
that there were no lapses on the part of naval authorities either in
regard to the delay in intimating the rejections to the DGS & D or
in regard to the adequacy of the storage of timber.

As regards the delay aspeect it has been observed on further exa-
mination that naval suthorities could have minimised delay had
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they. dealt with the matter by telegram or signal instea& of drditiary
oorrespondence.. Further, even in the relevant commintications to
the DGS & D, the reasons for rejections and the poinf whethet or
not rep]acement is required were not specifically ‘mentionedto the
DGS & D by the Naval Authorities with the result the DGS & D
could not take effective and timely action in this regard.

As regards storage of timber, the Board of Enquiry has stated
that as per evidence available these logs were ftacked on dunnage
of sleepers and covered with tarpaulin leaving enough space for ven-
tilation. These were spread on the ground only as and when re-
quired for inspection and restacked on completion. The Board visit-
ed the site and found the logs stacked in the above fashion. The
Board has concluded that no blame can be attributed to the con-
signee for the manner of storage of logs at the Naval Stores Depot,
Bombay.”

1.52. Regarding disciplinary action taken against the inspection
staff responsible, the Secretary, Ministry of Defence, informed the
Committee during evidence: “The DGI organisation did come to the
conclusion that the staff which did the inspection at the premises of
the supplier in Raipur were negligent in taeir duty and disciplinary
proceedings against them have been initiated.”

Asked to state the outcome of the Cisciplinary action, the Ministry
of Defence, in a subsequent note, have informed: “This conéerns the
Department of Defence Production of the Ministry of Defence. They
have stated that since the case has been taken over by the CBI for
investigation, disciplinary proceedings against the officer has been
held over till such time as the conclusions of the C.B.I. investigations
are known.”

1.53. The Committee are concerned to note serious lapses that
led to the procurement of 303 cubic meters of defective teak logs at
a cost of Rs. 3.5 lakhs from a firm. Of these 249.045 cubic meters were
received by a Naval Stores Depot at Bombay and the rest at another
Depot at Cochin. From the following narration of facts ihe lapse
would prima facie appear to be mala fide:

(i) Against an indent placed by Naval Headguarters in August
1969, the DGS&D invited tenders. Out of the tenders receiv-
ed the gquotation of the firm from which the logs were pur-
chased was the second lowest. The quotation of the lowest
tenderer was not accepted as his capacity was net recom-
mended by the Defence Inspectorate.
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The Naval Headquarters in a letter Aated }Zth August, 1968
. had boljiiestéd the DESERD “that 'In’ regard fo inspection of
the logs procured from trade agafrist ’&éir Indent, the Sur-
veyor of §tores N ; 'p?ﬁk' ;Bombay; shomid be the
o eétin 'Oﬂcg;u ’ccord nxl , the tender enquiry issued
%1y ‘? }m D indieated that the
eﬁﬁo w ufd cnriqi o\nt hy the Suryeyar of Stores.
é'ly, ‘the ﬁn? 15 s;ated to have tendered on the basis
Jntmfm inspection would ' Be by J.qspectox of General
Stores. The f)efencp Secretary stated during evidence that
the suppl'fer “perinaps had his own reasons for choosing
the Inspector of General Stores” and that “he perhaps ex-

pected a better deal”

1t is surpuqu thnt the vital ducrepmy between the

. tender enquiry: and the tonden affer was not noticed by the

E

(iv)

)

(vi)

DGS&D. In the Agceptance of Tender Inspostion by Ins-
pector of General Stoxes was stipulated as indicated by

the firm, '

it was omly after ‘the Naval Headquarfers' took up the
matter on 29th May, 1976 that the firm was approached for
a cthange 'in the inspection aunthority ang it did not agree.

It was decided on 23rd October, 1970, at a2 meeting held in
the Directorate of Supplies and Disposals, attended also
by the representative of the Naval Headquarters that in
view of the attitude of the fixm, the status quo should be
maintained but the Surveyor of Stores should be associa-
ted with the Inspectar while carrying out inspection. In
the meantime, the first lot of logs meant for Cochin Depot,
tendered by the firm were accepted by the Inspector. Sur-
prisingly, neither the DGS&D nor the Naval Headquarters
communicated the decision to the Inspecton of General
Stores concerned. On the contsaxy the communication was
sent to an Inspector unconnected with this purchase. The
Committee could not get any explanation for this slip.
The Defence Secretary stated: “{Tnfortunatﬂy we bhave
not be?n ahle to put our | hnger on the real trouble spot.”

On reetipt of the fivst ‘tonsignment in Januwary 1971, the
Béembay ' Depot noticed that the Surveyor of Stores had
not signed the iuspwion report and took up the matter
with their heandquarters! Before it was sorted out entire
supplies were vetelved st both the depots by June 1¥71.
Significmitly enough the Cochin Depot, which received the
fivst consignmient as early as July 1979, did not raise the
matter although a copy.of the letter of 12th August, 1969
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of the Naval Headquarters segarding ~— -~ o0\
0gs
hagd gone to them. AT VERTE S AW

vii) The Bombay Depot arranged for f‘é“.‘f:‘

o0 veyor of Stores on receipt of &:‘“M e t.l:(e s:“'
found that most of the logs had defocts and. the log; w:::
rejected whereas Cochin Depot accepted the supplie; ,,
the strength of the opinion of the professlonal auothoriyy
on the pretext that the defects were within the toleran..

Iimit allowed by the concerned Inspector of General
Stores.

(viii) During a joint inspection of the logs at the Bombay Depot
in October-November, 1971, ordered by the Director cf
Inspection (General Stores) at the instance of the Naval
Hepadquarters, which brought out serious defects, there
was reportedly a difference of opinion between the Inspec-
tor of General Stores and the Surveyor of Naval Stores.
The DGI organisation overruled the opinion of the Inspec-
tor of General Stores. A Board of enquiry which went into
the matter subsequently, also held that the supply, by and
large, did not conform to the specification ang the Inspec-
tor was responsible.

(ix) The defects noticed at Bombay Depot having been brought
to the notice of the DGS&D, they reported the rejecticn
of supplies in respect of that depot to the firm and asked

x 2 for replacement. The firm did not accept the rejection and
contended inter alia that logs supplied to both the Cochin
and Bombay Depots were inspected and accepted, the
source of supply was the same, inspection was carrigd out
by the same officer and that the standard of acceptance
was also the same. '

The Committee learn that on receipt of certain infermation in
1972, the CBI made some enquiries but did not pursue further.
However, after the Committee took evidence, the CBI has been asked
to investigate the case. The Committee desire that the CBI should
inter alia go inte the above aspects of the case and that on the basis
of the findings stringent action should be taken agsinst all the de-
linquents to effectively deter malpractice in the vital Defence estab-
lishment. The Commitiee would await a report in this regard within
three months. The Committee would also like to know the outcome
of the arbitration proceedings initiated at the instance of the firm.
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... Purchase of tinned food
Audit Paragruph :

1.54, Procurement of tinned foodstuffs for Defence Services is
arranged through contracts concluded with the suppliers by the
Chief Director of Purchase, . Ministry of Food and Agriculture,
Under the termsg of such contracts, inspection of consignment ten-
dered by the supplier is carried out by the Composite Food Labo-
ratory of the Army Service Corps. If, on inspection, the store is
found to be acceptable, the Composite Food Laboratory sends to the
Quarter Master General’s Branch one sample of the accepted stores.
After receipt of the stores, the consignees send to the Quarter Mas-
ter General’s Branch control samples from the stores received. The
Quarter Master General's Branch Laboratory analyses the control
samples to see that they conform to the sample received from the
Composite Food Laboratory as also to the Army Service Corps speci-
fications. If the consignment is found by the Composite Food Labo-
ratory to be not according to specification it is rejected and neces-
sary intimation to this effect along with reasons for rejection is sent
to all including the supplier. The latter has a right to prefer an
appeal against such rejection to Arsy Headquarters. A board con-
sisting of officers of Army Headquarters periodically meets to hear
such appeals. The Chief Director of Purchase with his technical
adviser attends the appeal board meetings.

(a) Purchase of soluble coffee

1.55. In July, 1969 the Chief Director of Purchase, Ministry of
Food and Agriculture, concluded a contract for purchase of 4.514
tonues of soluble coffee at a cost of Rs. 1.54 lakhs from a firm. The
coffee was to conform to 1.S.I. specifications (of 1964) and was war-
ranteed for six months. The supplies receiveq were initially rejec-
ted in the inspection condu:ted bv Composite Food Laboratory in
September, 1969 on the ground that it did not conform to relevant
1.S.1. specification for soluble coffee as the samples, when dissolved.
left a lot of sediment and some soft lumps were present in some
tins. The contractor appealed against the rejection and in Septem-
ber, 1969 the appeal board held that the supplies conformed to the
specification except that slight insoluble specks were noticed and
recommended that the supplies might be accepted with a price reduc-
tion. Accordingly, the consignment was accepted by the Chief
Director of Purchase with a reduction of -2 per cent in the purchase
Price with a fresh warranty period of six months from 26th Septem-

ber, 1969 and supplies were despatched to twenty supply depots in
October, 1969,
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1.56. A control sample from this consignment was received (from
one of the consignee depots) in December, 1969 for test at Quarter
Master General’s Branch Laboratory. An analysis of this sample
disclosed that the product was more like ground coffee in appea-
rance, solubility and preparation. More samples were, therefore,
obtained from eight other supply depots and it was found that
against 100 per cent solubility to be achieved with moderate stirring
in 30 seconds in boiling waterlin 3 minutes in cold water (according
to the prescribed specifications), the coffee samples left a high per-
centage (over 30) of insoluble matter after moderate stirring for
the prescribed period, and the laboratory branded the coffee as
“unsound and unwholesome” and “unfit for issue” as soluble coffee
to troops. Orders were issued in February, 1970 to freeze the un-
consumed stocks with the depots and a claim for Rs. 0.70 lakhs repre-
senting the cost of 2.05 tonnes of coffee left unconsumed and other
incidental expenses was preferred against the contractors. The
latter neither paid the amount nor removed the condemned stocks.
He contended in March, 1970 and June, 1970 that the reasons ad-
vapced for condemning the coffee were the same as intimated earlier
at the time of initial rejection in September, 1969 and the supply
having the same defect was accepted on 2 per cent price reduction.
The value of stocks already consumed (which formed 56 per cent
of the total accepted stock) and for which no claim could be prefer-
red is Rs. 0.84 lakh.

157. The Ministry of Defence intimated in December, 1972 that
it was likely that the defect detected at the time of initial inspection
got aggravated while in  storage probably due to manufacturing
defects and that an arbitrator had been appointed for adjudication
of the dispute. ‘

[Paragraph 12A of the Report of the Comptroller and Auditor Gene-
ral of India for the year 1971-72, Union Government (Defence
Services).]

1.568. The Committee were informed in a note, furnished by the
Ministry of Defence, that tender enquiries for purchase of soluble
coffee were issued to 6 suppliers. The following offers were receiv-

ed:

tity  Rate per

Name of the firm offered kg. (Rs.®
(in tonm)‘ -
1. Mfs...... . . . . . . . 4°514 34°05
2. *M/s. .......... . .. . . . . . “ 514 3700
3. *MM.. ... . . . . . 4514 34°05
The tender of M/s. . . . . . was accepyed as it wgs the lowey'.

—

*Firms which had established manufacture of instant coffee,



as

1.59. During evidence the representative of the Ministry of De-
fence submifted: “This firm was an approved contractor for ground
coftee and, at that time, the firmg which were approved for ground
coffee were also asked to tender for soluble coffee and as a result,
the tender of this firm being the lowest, was accepted.”

1.80. The Committee were informed that this firm had not sup-
plied soluble coffee earlier. Asked whether it was ensured that this
firm could manufacture this kind of coffee, the representative of the
Ministry. of Food explained: “The supply of soluble coffee was intro-
duced in the defence services sometime late in the 60s. Prior to
that, only ground coffee was being supplied. The Chief Director of
Purchase was maintaining a list of approved suppliers for ground
coffee. To begin with, when soluble coffee was introduced for sup-
ply in the defence services, they were operating on the same list of
approved contractors for inviting tenders for the supply of soluble
coffee also. This workeq well in the previous years. For the first
time in this case, covered by the paragraph under reference, we
met with this experience. Then on the basis of the inspection re-
part of the Deputy Director|Technical Adviser, the position was
reviewed and it was found that it was not safe to assume that every-
one who can produce ground coffee can also produce soluble coffee.
It was at that time decided that we should have a separate list of
approved contractors for soluble coffee. These instructions were
issued sometime in October, 1969. Since then, there are separate
lists for the supply of the two items—ground coffee and soluble
coffee.”

1.61. In reply to a question how out of 3 tenders received why
the second lowest offer from a well-known firm was not accepted
and a firm having no experience in the line was given the order, the
witness stated: “We had to accept normally the lowest quotation,
unless the experience with that firm was not satisfactory. So far
as this firm was concerned, it was only subsequently that the ex-
perience turned out to be bad.”

1.62. According to Audit paragraph, in July 1969, an order for
4514 tonnes of soluble coffee was given to this firm. When asked
about the total requirement and how it was met, the representative
of Ministry of Pood. submitted: “The indication given to us by Army
Headquarters was 9.014 .tonnes for the half year ending March 1970.
Out of this, a contract was placed for 4.514 tonnes with this firm.
Another contract was placed for the balance on the same firm later,
on 10th October, 1969. The second supply did not materialise and
the order was cancelled. According to law, for risk repurchase we
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had to issue open tenders and the firm which failed was alsp compe-
tent to bid. It so happened that their bid was the lowest and the
contract was given to them. But they failed again. Local purchase
was made to meet the immediate requirements.”

1.63. The Committee wanted to know (i) whether any penalty was
impesed on the firm and (ii) the total quantity and the value of
coffee locally purchased and the additional expenditure incurred
thereon. The Ministry of Defence, in a note, have stated: “Penalties
of Rs. 1,532 on account of risk repurchase loss and of Rs. 1,545.75 on
account of administrative inconvenience caused to the Government

were levied by C.D.P. on....(the firm) on account of breach of
contract on their part.

The quantity and value of coffee purchased locally by the Com-
mands to meet immediate requirements is given below:—

(a) 1921- 150 Kgs. Coffee soluble . . . . . Rs. 1,06,884°93

(b) 396-800 Kgs. Coffee Ground (equivalent to 79- 360 Kgs.
Coffee Soluble) . . . . . . . . Rs. 6,201-21
TOTAL . . . Rs. 1,13,086-14

These purchases were sanctioned as the firm had failed to tender
4,500 tons of soluble coffee by the date prescribed in the contract
which was cancelled by C.D.P.

Soluble coffee was purchased by the C.D.P. at Rs, 34.05 per kg.
for DAVANGIRI railway station. The extra expenditure to the
State for the quantity purchased locally when compared to this
purchase rate by the C.D.P. works out as under: —

(a) Estimated cost of 2000° 510 Kg. coffee soluble as indicated

ahove Rs. 68,117 0C
(b) Toral corst.. . . . . . . . . Rs. 1,13,086-14
(c' Net extra expenditure (b)—{a) . . . . . Rs. 44,969 14

However, the net extra expenditure of Rs. 4469.14 incurred cannot
be recovered from the firm as the purchases made locally by Army
Commanders cannot be treated as ‘risk purchases’. In the case of
risk purchase, where additional expenditure incurred is recoverable
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Arom the defaulter there are two essential comditions: —

(a) the purchasing authority should be same as the authori
who had made the original purchase; and au 7

(b) the defaulting firm should be given an opportunity te
tender along with other firms.

In the case in question, although the supplier had defaulted, since
the Army formations had no stock left they were compelled to resort
to local purchase.

164. The Committee were informed that the supplies received
Ainitially were rejected by Composite Food Laboratory in September
1969 and on appeal by the contractor, the supplies were accepted by
Appeal Board with 2 per cent reduction purchase price. The Com-
mittee desired to know that if the methods of testing were the same
how could the tests conducted by Appellate Laboratory give differ-
ent results on the basis of which the Appeal Board concluded that
the supplies might be accepted and whether any investigation had
been made in the matter. The Ministry of Defence, in a note,
state: “Analytical tests were conducted by the Composite Food
Laboratory, Madras on the original samples at the stage when sup-
plies were offered. Except for the contents of two tins, the contents
of others were acceptable. As a result the whole consignment was
rejected by the Composite Food Laboratory. The Composite Food
Laboratory has no authority whatsoever to accept stocks which
show even minor deviations from specifications and such stocks are
therefore rejected by them as in the present case. It may be added
that as per procedure three samples are drawn at this stage, of
which one is tested, the second given to supplier after sealing, and
the third sent to Army Hagrs. Food Laboratory, in cases of rejec-
tions. The third sample is retained by the Laboratory, if the store
is acceptable. In addition at despatching stage, samples are drawn
afresh by representative of Composite Food Laboratory and sent to
Army Hqrs. Food Laboratory for analysis.

In case of rejections, the supplier has a right of appeal which he
has to support with the sealed sample with him. This sample and
the one received from the Composite Food Laboratory are analysed
before a decision is taken.

On receipt of appeal in this case, tests were conducted by the
Army Hqrs. Food Laboratory on samples (sent by the supplier and
by the Composite Food Laboratory Madras). As a result of the
“tests conducted by the Appellate Laboratory, only slight deviations
‘from the presaribed.specifications, not involving any health hazards,
were moticed. The Appeal Board which is presided over by the
DST|DDST in whom the authority vests to accept supplies with
rinor deviations only recommended acceptance of stocks on a price

360 L.S.—3 A



reduction. The aptuak reduction of price is detertiified by Winistry
of Food (Chief Director of Purchase). A price reduction: of 2 per
cent was fixed by Chief Director of Purchase with.a. fresh warranty.
The methods of testing, 'whether conducted by the Composite Food
Laboratory or the Army Hgrs. Food Laboratory are the same but
slight variations in the results do occur sometimes. In view of this
no investigations were conducted.” ‘

1.65. According to Audit para, the supplies were despatched to
20 supplies depots in October 1963 and on receipt of a defective
sample from one of the consignee depot (Bangalore Depot) in De-
cember 1969, more samples were received from eight other supply
depots. The Ministry of Defence were asked as to when did these
depots received the consignments and whether any depot hod sent
any sample to the Quarter Master General’s Laboratory before the
one received in December, 1969. In a note, the Ministry of Defence -
stated: “The consignments were sent to as many as twenty consignee
depots. The dates of actual receipt by them 1is being ascertained.
As per standard practice, after the despatch instructions are issued a
random selection is made by Army Hgrs. of 20 per cent of the
consignre depots who are asked to send control samples for test
at the Army Hqrs. Food Laboratory. Such instructions were issued
to four such consignee depots in the present case. There is, however,
no bar to any other consignee depot sending a control sample for
test at the Army Hgrs. Food Laboratory. Supply Depot, Bangalore
(which was not one of the four depots selected at random) sent a
sample on their own, This was received on 19th December, 1969.
Ags the test results of the control sample received from the Supyly
Depot, Bangalore proved to be adverse, it was decided to enlarge
the area of tests. Therefore, 8 consignee depots (out of 20) who
had received the largest supplies were selected and asked on 23rd
December, 1969 to send control samples drawn by Boards of Officers.
These samples were received during the period January|February,
1970.”

The Committee were however informed during evidence that
the letter to 8 depots was sent on 29th December, 1969 and not on 23rd
December, 1969 as stated in the note. It was also stated that Banga-
lore Depot was not one of the four Depots selected to send control
samples. Asked when the samples were received from the four
selected depots, the witness replied: “Four depots were selected at
random mltxally for sending samples, but before this process could
‘be fihalised, Bangalore on its own sent one ‘sample and it was found
10 he below specn‘ﬂcatian Immedizately, to be on the safe side, A-my"
Headquarters asked exght depQ)ts to send samples mstead 6f four:
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They wgrqﬂgsk&eq tq‘seng samples on 29th , December, 1868. - The-
sarhplés were teceived in January|February 70" e e
Asked when instructions were sent to four selected depots, the
witness informed that the letter was sent to them on 24th December,
1968 and on the bas's of the suo motu samples from Bangalore. the
next letter to eight depots was sent on 29th December, 1969,

1.66. The Committee desired to know the reasons for delay in
issuing instructions to the four selected depots while the supplies
were despatched to the 20 depots early in October 1969. The Com-
mittee also wanted to know whether any of these depols were in-
cluded in the 8 depots who were also asked to send control samples
on 29th December 1969. The Ministry of Defence, in a note, have
informed the Committee: “According to the practice then in vegue,
control samples relating to various consienments of different fcod
items used to be called for by making selection of depots pericdi-
cally through a consolidated letter after collecting a sufficient num-
her of despatch instructions. Accordingly, this particular consign-
ment of soluble coffee wag includeq in the consolidated letter issuad
v Army Headquarters on 24th December, 1969 calling for contrcl
samvples. Instructions have since been issued on 21st Novemker,
1973 to provide that such selections should be made fortnightly.
Special carirol camples called fer on the 29th December. 1969 in-
cluded two depots to whom instructions were issued earlier on the
24th Deccmber. 1969 culling for control samples.”

1.67. Taking note of the fact that the Bangalore Depot had sent
the samplc to the Quarter Master General’'s Branch Loboratery
within one month of the receipt of stock, the Committee wanted to
know as to how the quality could deteriorate s¢ much within
warranty period or whether the quality was bad ab initio. The
representative of the Ministry of Defence deposed: “This consign-
ment was offered in early September. It was perhaps manufac-
tured in August. I have seen the laboratory report from Madras
and the detailed report shows that they tested twelve tins cut of
which ten tins contained brown powder—and the brown powder
was completelv soluble and two tins contained blackish powder and
there they found a large number of insoluble material. It is pes-
sible that the consignment had two tvpes of tins only. Some tins
were good an some ting were bad and it is possible that the Banga-
lore depot got some of the bad tins and they despatched them to
the Central Laboratory where they were found unsatisfactc;r,v.
Judging the thing as a whole, the main fault lay in not ensuring
that this cbhtractor was capable of producing soluble'coﬁee befqre
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orders were placed. That was the lacuna in this case and that hes
now beem rectified.”

The witness, however, admitted: “That is quite possible that
some of the suppliegs were ab initio -defective but the tender was
placed on the basis of the small number of samples received in the
Delhi QMG's Laboratory, which were found to be favourable.”

1.68. The Committee were informed during evidence that Chief
Director of Purchase finally approved the list of contractors. Asked
about the basis on which they are approved, the representative of
the Ministry of Food stated: “Twice a year we invite applications
from suppliers who are interested in making supplies to the Army.
They apply for registration and their applications are considered in
the light of the Bank Report. The firms’ bankers certify about the
firms' financial stability.

Secondly, they should be suitable from the technical as well as
hygienic point of view for supplying the products required for the
Defence.

Thirdly, they should maintain a standing security as per require-
ments.

The applications for registration are considered in the light of
these three factors.”

1.69. The Committee desired to now as to why the firm’'s factory
was not inspected prior to acceptance of the tender and under what
circumstances it was inspected later on. The Ministry of Defence,
in a note, have stated: “The contract in question with.... (the
firm) was placed on 14-7-1963. Till then, only one list of suppliers
registered for coffee was maintained and tender enquiries for both
ground coffee and soluble coffee were issued to the suppliers listed
therein. This practice had worked satisfactorily in the past and no
failures in the supply of soluble coffee came to notice. It was only
after the placement of the contract in July 1969 that technical
advice was received that the procedure and equipment for manu-
facture of soluble coffee were distinctly different from those for
ground coffee and separate inspection and registration for the two
items was necessary. The inspection of the factory was, therefore,
conducted in September 3989 in order to determine its technical
competence and suitability for production of soluble eoffee.”

1.70. The Ministry of Defence, in a note, have stated that the
Deputy Technical Adviser of the Ministry of Food inspected the
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firm's fuctory on 16th September, 1989. The Deputy Technieal
Adviser had come to the following conclusion in his report on the
firm: —

“It is doubtful that the firm can produce soluble coffee with
the equipments available with them and the method of
production adopted by them. The product manufactured
by the firm cannot be termed soluble coffee in terms of the
deflnition given in the IS Specification No. 2701-1964]
for soluble coffee. There are no facilities for extraction
of coffee with hot water and the drying of coffee extract
to a powder. The firm is, thereforenot considered suit-
able for production of soluble coffee. It would be desira-
ble to enforce continuous inspection of production at the
time of any new contract with the firm.”

1.71. According to the Deputy Technicaj Adviser the firm had
only the following equipments:

1. A roasting machine having a capacity of 60 Kg. per charge,
supplied by G. W. Barth Ludwigsbarth West Germany
with a control switch having arrangement for two tem-
peratures control and water injection system. The roaster
is equipped with pneumatic feeding device, cooling screens
and a storage tank for 120 Kg. roasted coffee.

2. Automatic electrical balance to weigh 15—150 gms. for
weighing 200 gms. in one tin, 100 gms. weight is trans-
ferred twice to the tin.

3. Equipment for seaming the containers.
4. Equipment for gas packing.

The representative of the Ministry of Food informed the Com-
mittee that the Report of the Deputy Technical Adviser was sent to
QMG’s Branch on 4th October, 1969. The Quarter Master General
admitted during evidence that they did not take any action on that.

Asked whether the Coffee Board was ever consulted. the repre-
sentative of Ministry of Food replied in negative,

1.72. The warranty period of six months commenced from 26th
September, 1969 and was to expire by 25th March, 1970. Asked about
the date when it was finally decided that the coffee supplies were
unconsumable and the action taken thereon, the representative. of
the Ministry of Defence deposed that the stocks were frozen during
February, 1970 and a telegram was issued on the 2lIst February, 1970
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to all the supply depots. It was, however, admitted by the Quarter
Master General that while the quantities still in the depots were
frozen but they could not do much about the quantities which héd
been issued o the units.

1.73. The Committee enquired whether the expiry date is marked
‘on the tinned food stuffs as is done in the case of medicines etc.,
the representative of Ministry of Food replied that the date of manu-
facture is marked on the tin but not the date of expiry.

1.74. Regarding the composition of the Appeal Board, the Ministry
of Defence, in a note furnished to the Committee, informed that
the Appeal Board consists of Director of Supplies and Transport
(DST{DDST) as the Chairman and Dy. DS (Indentor) and the
DD (FI) (an AMC Officer) as members. The Chief Director of
Purchase or his technical representative also attends the meeting
of the Appeal Board. Asked why full-fledged food technologists
were not appointed as members on the Appeal Board, the represen-
tative of the Ministry of Defence stated: “We will consider it.”

1.75. As regards the appointment of arbitrator the representative
of Ministry of Food informed the Committee during evidence that
the supplier filed a petition in the High Court requesting appoint-
ment of an arbitrator under Arbitration Act to go into the question
of claim made by the Government. The Court gave a judgment
asking the Government to appoint an arbitrator and they had
appointed an arbitrator in compliance with the Courts order. The
Government had accordingly appointed arbitrator on 3rd August,
1973 and the case is proceeding before an arbitrator.

1.76. From the statement showing the quantity and value of each
purchase of ground coffee!soluble coffee during the years 1967 to
1969 it is seen that the following orders were placed on the firm
for purchase of soluble coffee and that earlier the purchases (38.73
tonnes) were made on 9 occasions from firms which had established
manufacture of instant coffee in the country.

S. No A T. No. and date Quantity Vatue of
tonnes contract

1. 9/3'476/65P- IV, dt. 14-7-1969 . . . 4514 1,53,701° 70

! -P. -9- . . . - 500 1,531,225 00

2. oft1/s81/69. P. IV, dt. 10-9-69 4 5. ((’:anccllem

3. 9/13/716169 P TV, dt.12-11-69 . . L. 4§00 1,54,575 00
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Further it is seen that during the period 1987-6) ground coffee
-wasg purchased on orders placed on seven occasions between February,
1967 and November, 1968 and all the orders were placed on this
firm for a total quantity of 97.851 tonnes at the cost of Rs. 7.94 lakhs.

1.77. The Committee are surprised that 4.514 tonnes of what can
only be regarded as ground coffce was purchased as soluble coffee
at a cost of Rs, 1.54 lakhs through the Chief Director of Purchase,
Ministry of Food and Agviculture to meet Defence requirements from
a firm which had no capacity for the manufacture of soluble coffee.
It should be noted that the price of soluble coffee was about four
times the price of ground coffee. The following interesting points
emerge out of the examination of the case by the Committee in so
far as the conduct of the Purchasing Organisation is concerned:

(i) The order for the supply weas placed on the firm in July,
1969 without verifying the capacily of the firm. It is
strange th:t it was assumed that everyone who can pro-
duer ground coffee can also produce soluble coffee and
the list of registered sunpliers of ground coffce was ap-
proved for inviting tenders for the supply of soluble
coffee also.

(i) The Commiitee find that at nresent only ihrece firms
have established manufacture of soluble coffee in the
country. They are unable to understand how this fact
was not known to the Purchasing Organisation. The
Organisation never consulied the Coffee Board or the -
Commerce Ministry in the matter. Moreover, it was not
for the first time tha! the soluble coffce was being pro-
cured for the Defence Services in 1969. Purchases had
been made since 1967 from established manufacturers.
it was for the first time that an order was apparently wil-
fully placed in 1969 on a firm which had not capacity
whatsoever for the manufacture of <oluble caffee.

(iii) Durings the perind 1967—1969, ground coffee was purchas-
ed on orders placed on T occasions between February, 1967
and November, 1968 and g1l the orders werc placed on
this firm alene for a total gquantity of 97.85 tonnes at the
cost of Bs. 7.94 lakhs. Presumably, the purchase of
ground cofice for Defence was stopped after November,
1968. Thereafter this order for the supply of soluble
«coffee was placed on the same firm in July 1969. Thus
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there somus te have boem seme exorcise of tavouritism|!
corruption,

The supplies received were initially rejected in the inspec-
tion conducted by Composite Food Laboratory of the
Army Service Corps in September, 1969. The Appeal
Board with which the Chief Director of Purchase and
his officers were associated, held that the supplies con-
formed to the specification except that slight insoluble
specks were noticed. Thereafter the consignment was
accepted by the Chief Director Purchase with a nomi-
nal price reduction of 2 per cent. It will be of interest
to know the part played by the officers of the Purchasing
Organisation in arriving at this decision of the Board.

(v) Another order was placed on this firm for 4.5 tonnes of

(vi)

soluble coffee of the value of Rs. 1.53 lakhs subsequently
and the supply did not materialise. The risk purchase
order was also placed in November, 1969 on the same firm
presumably to oblige them and they again failed and fin-

ally local purchases had to be made at an extra cost

of
of Rs. 0.45 lakh.

In the meantime, the firm’s factory was inspected by the
Deputy Technical Adviser of the Ministry of Food on 16th
September, 1969 which revealed that the firm had ne:
equipment for the manufacture of soluble coffee. Instant
coffee plant is capital intensive and complicated. All that
the firm had were (a) a roasting machine, (b) an auto-
matic electrical balance, (¢) an equipment for seaming
the containers and (d) an equipment for gas packing In
spite of these findings, net only were the supplies against
the first order accepted by the Chief Director, Purchase

but also a risk purchase contract against the second order
was placed on the same firm.

The Committee consider that thorough probe into the deals

with this firm is mecessary since the facts set out above
suggest clearly that corrupt practices were ®dopted. Ex-
amplary action should he taken against the officials in--
volved under advice te the Committee.
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1.48. 'tne Committee have also found serious lapses on the part of
the Defende autherities as indicated below:

The supplios were despatched to 20 Supply Depots in October
1909 and the warranty period expired on 25th March, 1970.
As per standard practice after the despatch instructions
are issued, a random selection is made by Army Head-
quarters of 20 per cent of the consignee depots who are
asked to send contrel samples for test at the Army Head-
quarters Food Laboratory. Surprisingly, instructions to
the 4 selected depots to send control samples in this case
went only on 24th December, 1969. In the meanwhile,
one of the remaining depots sent a sample on its own on
15th December, 1969. The analysis of this sample disclos-
ed that the product was more like ground coffee in ap-
pearance, solubility and preparation. Thereafter samples
were called for from six more depots on 29th December,
1969 and they were received during January/February,
1970. These on analysis confirmed the earlier finding,
All this was done perhaps to delay matters sufficiently
and it was only in February, 1970, i.e., about a month be-
fore the expiry of the warranty period that orders were
issued to freeze the unconsumed stocks with the depots
and a claim for Rs. 0.70 lakh only representing the cost of
2.05 tonnes of coffee left unconsumed and other inciden-

tal expenses was preferred against the firm.
The Committee cannot hut deprecate such costly delays and ex-
pect that the officers concerned should be punished specially because

the Jawans got a fraction of their entitlement for which the Gov-
ernment paid for.

1.79. Another distressing lapse is that although the adverse report
of the Deputy Technical Adviser on the capacity of the firm was
sent to the QMG’s Branch on 4th October, 1968, no action was taken
thereon, This is a very serious matter since it happemed even in

QMG’s Branch and action should therefore be taken under advice
to the Committee,

1.80. The Committee would like to know the arbitrator's award
on the claim of Government against the firm in this case.

1.81. The Committee have been informed that the Appeal Board
consists of Director of Supplies and Transport as the Chairman, the
indentor and an Army Medical Corps Officer as members. After
examining this case the Committee have come to the conclusion
that the functioning of the Appeal Board as it constituted at present
is quite unsatisfactory and it needs to be reconstituted immediately.
The Commitice are of the view that the Purchasing Organmisatiem
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$hoid not be associated with the Board Inspead Govermment
should consider the advisability of having on the Board a.competent
food technologlst and associating a representative from:the Commo-
dity Board concerned wherever necessary. It should also be consi.
dered whether there is any particular advantage in procuring
tinned food-stuffs for Defence Services through the Ministry of Food
and Agriculture.

PURCHASE OF TINNED MEAT
Audit Paragraph

1.82. Two contracts were concluded by the Chief Director of Pur
chase in January, and February. 1970 for supply of 15 and 30 tonnes
of tinned meat by a firm at the price of Rs. 13,000 per tonne. The
Army Service Corps specification for meat is as follows:—

“Quality: The meat selected for canning shall be of good
quality, obtained only from the caccasses of healthy «oats
or sheep slaughtered in licensed premises according to ap-
proved procedure. The animal shall be subjected to pro-
per ante-mortem and post-mortem inspection by a repre-
sentative of the Remounts and Veterinary Directorate.”

1.83. The acceptance of tender in this case, however, provided for
as follows:—

“That animals, duly slaughtered in Munigipal Sloughter
Houses inspected by their veterinary authorities, and
stamped carcasses be accepted as having met the require-
ment of ante-mortem and post-mortem examinations. The
carcasses of the animals. slaughtered in Municipal Slaugh-
ter Houses, duly stamped by the authorised veterinary
authorities should be conveved in closed vans with refri-
geration/cooling arrangements.”

1.84. Supplies received in February and March, 1970 against the
first contract were inspected by Composite Food Laboratory and the
entire consignment was accepted in April, 1970., Bulk of the sup-
plies (13.6 tonnes) was sent in May. 1970 through a rail-head supply
depot to units in the forward area and the bzﬁancev was 1ssuéd to
other supply depots in the same month. Tssues to the troops in the
forward areas were mostly made after July/August 1970.

1.85. In the meantlme in Mav/June, 1870, the:supplies tendered
againgt the second contract by the same firm were found on inspec-
“tlon by the Compoan Foqd Laboratery :to. be. unaceeptable! The

LEIRS R
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‘miaih reasohs for rejection ‘were that the stocks were not free from
excessive body fat and fascia, that they had objectionable flavours
smell, that the cans, on opening, gave a negative pressure less than
specification limits and the stocks had not been adequately processed
in that one can on incumbation indicated evidence of microbial
growth. An appeal preferred by the firm was also rejected by Army
Headquarters in July, 1970 as the supplies were found to have suffer-
ed micro-biological spoilage duec to inadequate|/bad processing and
were unfit for issue to troops. Since this gave rise to a suspicion that
the supplies under the first contract accepted in April, 1970 might also
have been affected, instructions were issued by Army Headguarters
in August, 1970 to all supply depets th freeze stochs immediately
and also send samples for test. On analysis of the samples it was
found that those stocks were also similarly affected and unfit for
issue to troops.

1.86. The rail-head supply depot, however, did not relay the in-
structions of Army Headquarters correctly to the supply units in
the forward area and in a signal message the words “Freeze issues”
were transmitted as “Free issues”. In November. 1970 this mistake
was discovered and action was taken to stop further issues. By
the, however, over 9.4 tonnes of the meat (of value Rs. 1.22 lakhs)
had already been issued to the troops and consumed.

1.87. Claims amounting to Rs. 0.76 lakh representing the cost of
5.3 tonnes of meat left unconsumed and other incidental expenses
were preferred against the contractor. He, however, filed a suit in
April. 1971 against the recovery and obtained an injunction from the
High Court restraining Government from effecting the recovery. The
Ministry of Defence intimated in December, 1972 that this injunc-
tion order had not yet been vacated.

[Paragraph 12(b) of the Report of Comptroller and Auditor
General of India for the year 1971-72, Union Government
(Defence Services)].

1.88. The Committee were informed that the firm did not earlier
make any sugply. Tt was stated during evidence that a tender en-
quiry was issued on 27th October, 1969 to eight firms. Out of which
four firms including the firm in question were registered for supply
of canned mutton. The other four firms had applied for registration
but no final decision had been taken in their cases by that time.
This firm had originally quoted Rs. 13.95 per kg. and subsequently
reduced it to Rs. 13 per kg. The other offer was Rs. 12.45 per kg.
but they offered only 16 tonnes. This firm offered 45 tonnes and the
requirement was met by placing orders on both the firms. When
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pointed out that meat was purchased in two instalments of 15 tonnes
and 30 tonnes, why was not the lowest offer accepted, the represen-
tative of the Ministry of Food submitted: “Later on this firm not
only reduced the price to Rs. 13 but reduced the quantity also 1o
15 tonnes.” The witness added: “We accepted both quantities be-
cause our requirement was 200 tonnes and there was a bhacklog of
200 tonnes of canned mutton supply.”

1.89. The supplies against the first contract were sent to the Sup-
ply Depots in May, 1970. Asked whether the control samples were
not received in the QMG’s Branch Laboratory for the test from these
depots, immediately after receipt of stores, in the normal course, the
Ministry of Defence, in a note, stated: “The control samples were
received in the QMG’s Branch Laboratory immediately after the
receipts of the stores by the consignee depots in the normal manners.”

1.90. The Supplies tendered against second tender of 30 tonnes by
the firm in May/June, 1970 were found on inspection by Composite
Food Laboratory to be unacceptable on account of excessive body
fat and fascia. objectionable smell etc. In reply to a question whe-
ther these defects were not noticed by Composite Food Laboratory
while inspecting the supplies against the first contract for 15 tonnes
of tinned meat. the Ministry of Defence, in a note, have stated: “Ac-
cording to the laboratory reports pertaining to the first contract of
15 tonnes of tinned meat, taste and smell were reported to be satis-
factory, whereas no observations were made with regard to body
fat and fascia by the Composite Food Laboratory which were evi-
dently not noticed.”

1.91. Asked about the reasons for deviation from the army speci-
fications for meat in the contract, the representative of the Ministry
of Defence stated: “The army’s requirement of tinned mutton is of
the order of 1500 tonnes per annum. But year by year we found
supplies are not coming forward from the open market. Therefore,
it was represented to the AHQ by the Chief Director of Purchase
that this particular stipulation thal the sheep or goat should be in-
spected before and after slaughter by the army veterinary doctors
should be relaxed. They also urged that in the municipal slaughter
houses there is already an organisation by which the civilian veteri-
nary doctors examine the animals before slaughter and after
slaughter and put a stamp on the carcasses. It was urged that this
should be a sufficient safeguard against bad meat being supplied to
the army. Therefore, because the supplies were not coming for-
ward, as a temporary measure, this was agreed to by AHQ in consul-
tation with the Army Medical Directorate and a letter was issued.
The witness added: “The relaxation was effective from 20th August,
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1969 upto some time in May, 1970. Subsequently, on 24th June, the
restriction was again reimposed. It was during this period of re-
laxation that these two firms who had no facilities for slaughter of
animals within their factory were allowed to supply canned mutton.”

1.92. Asked what was the difficulty in inspection by the Army
Veterinary authorities, the witness deposed: “Normally, the require-
ment is that the animals should be slaughtered in the factory pre-
mises of the supplier and before and after slaughter inspection
should be done by the army veterinary officers. But it was sug-
gested to AHQ that this procedure was proving very difficult with
the result that suppliers were not coming forward. Because these
suppliers did not have facilities for keeping the animals within their
factory premises so that our doctors could go an inspect them.”

1.93. The Committee were informed by the representative of the
Ministry of Food, during evidence. that on the basis of two represes-
tations from two firms including the representation from the firm in
question, the Chief Director of Purchase had suggested for relaxa-
tion with regard to place of slaughter place of inspection and the
authority for inspection. The Quarter Master General deposed be-
fore the Committee: “We did not have sufficient number of officers
who could go round the municipal slaughter houses for inspection.. ..
As we did not have the manpowecr, we felt that we would try this
method whereby we can take meat which has been slaughtered in
the Municipal Slaughter House. ... Results have been unpleasant and
so we have stopped this relaxation.”

In reply to another question, th¢ witress admitted that it was
not possible to ensure that the carcass which is taken away from the
municipal slaughter house is the same carcass cooked in the factory.

1.94. The Committee wanted to know as to how the mistake in
transmission of signal occurred and who made the signal. The re
presentative of the Ministry of Defence stated during evidence: “We
irvestigated into this and it appears that the signals which were
issued from here had the word ‘freeze’, but in transmission there was
an obvious error, with the result that the Pathankot depot which
received the bulk of the supplies, had the message recorded as ‘free
issues’. ‘That was very unfortunate; it was a dangerous mistake
and we have already taken corrective action that in future this kind
of signal should not be issued but such instructions should be issued
only on the telephone and the instruction also sent as ‘withhold sup-
plies’. Of course, by the omission of two letters all the damage was
done....Lt. Col. ...... had signed the signal from here on the 22nd
August, 1970”
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Whgn asked. whether the usual letter,.in confirmation of the
rignal/telegram was not sent, the witness replied that while the
telegram was sent on the 22nd August, “the conﬁrmatlon letter was
issued on the 26th where also the word ‘freeze issues’ were repeated,
but unfortunatly the Pathankot depot did not take action on this
letter as well; till later on sometime in November they came to know
about this mistake.” The witness added: “The Pathankot depot
had received the letter on the 28th August. What they did was,
they asked the forward company to send the samples only, but thev
did not issue any instructions to freeze.”

Asked whether it was not the usual procedure to repeat the
operational part of the signal, the Quarter Master General agread:
“It depends on the discretion of the ofiicer.. ... *his was th: cprra-
tional part and so he should have repeat:d the word ‘freeze’” The
Committee were informed during evidence that the officer wlo sign-
ed the signal was initially a Territorial Army Oficer and ho did
not undergo any formal training in sending message.

1.95. The Minisiry of Delence had intimated (February, 1373)
the Audit that “to safeguard the state interest a warranty clause
was included in th~ r~ontract to the effect that the suppli-s shculd
be sound, wholesome ard fit for human consum;p.ion {or o perind
of twelve months from the jast day of the m-nth of fendering, in
any climate and under all conditions of storage and movement in
India. Claims were preferred against the supplier through Chici
Director of Purchase in time and well within the above warranty
period.”

1.96. The Ministry of Agriculture (Dcpartment of Food) had inti-
mated (February, 1973) the Audit as under:

“, ...--the issue of future tender enquiries to this party for
normal purchases was also suspended. Besides, the con-
tracts against which sub-standard supplies were made by
the firm were cancelled at their risk and cost. However,
in order to ensure that risk repurchase was legally valid
and enforceable the defaulting firm had to be given an
opportunity to quote against the tender enquiries issued
at their risk and cost and it resulted in one of the risk re-
purchase contracts for 9.450 tonnes being awarded to
them. No ¢other contract has been contluded with them
‘and for notmal purchases, as stated above. nc tender en-
quiry was thereafter issued to them.”

Sh
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1.97, The Commlttee desired to know, the quantity thay was pur-
ctiased at th ‘risk and cost of the firm on account of. sub-standard
supplies made by them and the extra expenditure incurred on this-
account and whether it was recovered. The Ministry of Defencs,
in a note, informed: “No rigk purchase was made at the 'cost of ,the
firm on account of sub-standard supplies referred to in the -Audit
para. In the case of supplies which go bad during the warranty
period, the Government has no right under the contract to effect
risk repurchase at the cost of the supplier. The Government, how-
ever, has the right to dispose of the condemned stocks in any way it
considered necessary after giving due notice to the contractor ond
also at its discretion either to allow the contractcr to replace the
condemned stocks within a specified period or to recover from ihe
contractor the contract price thereof together with all incidental ard
freisht charges incurred from the place of delivery to the place
where the supplies were ultimately condemned. On this basis, a
claim of Rs. 75,164.48 representing the cost, transportation and inci-
dental charges in respect of 53 tonnes cf canned ment left un-
consumed was made against the firm.”

Clarifying the position during evidencs the representativo of the
Ministry of Food stated: “The first contraci failed after :he cuap-
plies had been accepted. This is governed by the warranty c]auqe
This (risk) purchase was made in respect of the second contra:
which failed ab initio.” He further clarified that repurchasc is pos-
sible when the supplies are not accepted.

1.98. Asked how the risk purchase contract came to be award-
ed to the same firm which failed, the repre-entative of the Ministiy
of Defence stated: “The commonsense view is thai the man who
supplied material which was not upto the mark should rot be allew-
ci to tender again. But, unfortunately, the Law Ministry gave
this ruling that he should again be given an opportunity. 1 under-
stand, in all these cases of risk purchase, the supplier who has de-
faulted is given another opportunity to tender.”

Asked if the supplier again supplies the defective store, whe
ther they will again go in for repurchase and for how long, the
representative of the  Ministry of Food deposed: “They say it
cannot be helped...... Finally, we can claim, at a certain stage,
damages for not fulfilling the obligations.”

1.69. lemg details of the risk repurchase contracts fo tho firn,
the witness mfox;med the. Commlttee “We ‘placed 01‘der° of 90.430
tonneg on the ofher firm aj the rate of Rs, 1350 and for 9.55 tonics
fn. this, firm—they, failed to supp}y on the last occaslon—qt the ratg,
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of Rs. 1245. Out of 955 tonnes order which was

plmed on them
:;r repurchase, they failed to supply 4.23 tonnes. They supplied
e rest.”

Asked about the extra expenditure incurred on it, the witness
replied: “The total amount has not been compuied.” In reply to
a question it was stated that the firm's name could not be black-
listed because the case is still pending.”

1.100. Regarding the present position of the case, the Ministry
of Defence have informed the Committee in a note: “The peti-
tion filed by the supplier under Section 20 of the Arbitration Act,
1940, has been accepted by the Delhi High Court on 13-8-1973 and
the Union of India has been directed to appoint an Arbitrator,
‘The Government has accordingly appointed the Arbitrator on
27-8-1973. At the same time, an appeal against it has also been
filed on 8-10-1973 before the Division Bench.”

1.101. This is yet another case where the purchases against the
Defence requirements were thoroughly mismanaged. Two con-
tracts were concluded by the Chicf Director, Purchase in January
and February, 1970 for supply of 15 tonnes and 30 tonnes of tinned
meat by a firm at the price of Rs. 13,000 per tonne. Normally the
requirement is that the animals should be slaughtered at the firm‘s
premises and before and after slaughter inspection should be car-
ried out by the Army Veterinary Officer.  On the basis of twe
representations from two firms, including the firm in question, the
Chief Director, Purchase had suggested reiaxation of this require-
ment. This particular firm had no facilities for slaughter of animals
within their factory. The Army Headquarters readily agreed, as
a temporary measure, to allow the slaughtering of animals in the
Municipal Slaughter Houses inspected by Municipal veterinary
authorities. It was during this period that the firm supplied the
meat. The reprezentative of the Ministry of Food admitted during
evidence that it was not possible to ensure that the carcass which
was taken away from the Municipal Slaughter House was the
«carcass cooked in the factory. The possibility of substituting a
different and inferior meat by unscrupulous suppliers cannot there-
fore be ruled out. The Committee find that the supplies reccived in
February and March, 1979 against the first contract were inspected
by the Composite Food Laboratory and the entire consignment was
accepted in April 1970. However, the supply tendered against the
second contract in May/June, 1970 was found by the , Laboratory to
be unacceptable. The main reasons for the rejection were that the
stocks were not free from excessive body fat and faseia, that they
had objectionable flavour/smell and that the stocks had not been
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adequately processed in that one can on incubation indicated evi-
dence of microbial growth. Thereafter an analysis of sampies of the
supplies against the first contract it was found that those stocks
were also similarly affected and unfit for human consumption.
Action was taken only in November, 1970 to stop further issues to
troops. By then over 9.4 tonnes of this substandard and unhygienic
meat had already been consumed and claims amounting to Rs. 0.70
lakh oniy would be preferred against the contractor. In view of this
the Committee regard it as extremely unwise, if at all it had been
done in good faith, to have placed orders on this firm without verify-
ing the capacity properly and to have relaxed the requirement of the
Army in regard to inspection especially when the firm had not
made any supply of meat earlier. What is more, the risk purchase
order for the failure of the firm against the second contract was
also placed on the same firm and it again failed partly. The Com-
mittee stress that appropriate action should be taken in the matter,
inter-alia, for laying down suitable guidelines for risk purchase in
order to ensure timely supplies.

1.102. The Committee have not got any satisfactory explanation
why the Composite Food Laboratory did not notice the defects
in the supplies received against the first contract. They, however,
learn that no observations were made with regard to body fat or
facia by the Laboratory in this case. Further, although the Depot
which received the bulk of the supplies received the post-copy of
the telegram dated 22nd August, 1970 to ‘freeze issues’, strangely
enough the Depot did not take any action till November, 1970 for
reasons known to them. Such delays in stopping issue of substan-
dard material for consumption could seriously endanger the health
of troops. The Committee require that responsibility should be
fixed for these lapses and action taken reported to them.

1.103. The Committee understand that an arbitrator has been
appointed to go into the claims of the Government as per the Delhi
High Court order and that on legal advice an appeal against the de-
cision of the High Court has been filed on 8-10-1973 before the
Division Bench. The Committee would like to know the outcome.
They would also like to know the action taken in regard to re-
covery of the additional expenditure incurred by Government in
the repurchase on the failure of the firm against risk purchase order
placed on them.,

369 L.S.—4.
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Strengthening of an air field
Audit Paragraph

1.104. An airfield at a station originally constructed during the
last world war was taken over by the Indian Air Force mn 1962
Certain minor repairs to the airfield were then carried out by the
Military Engineer Services, A sitting board was assembled in Nov-
ember, 1864 to recommend minimum essential facilities to be provid-
ed at the airfield for operation of certain types of transport and
fighter aircraft. On the recommendations of the board, sanction was
accorded in July, 1965 by the headquarters of an Air Command for
execution of work for strengthening the existing airfield at an esti-
mated cost of Rs. 24.95 lakhs, A contract was concluded by the
Military Engineer Services authorities in September, 1985 for Rs.
27.67 lakhs for execution of the work which was started in October,
1965. Although the work was to be completed in July, 1966 it was
completed in April 1968 on account of extensions granted to the
contractor from time to time due to delay in handing over of the
entire site by the Air Force authorities, political situation and sub-
versive activities of hostile elements in the area, rains, delay in re-
ceipt of bitumen, break-down of tools and plant issued by depart-
ment, etc. While issuing the completion certificate to the contractor
on 30th April, 1968, certain minor defects were pointed out by the
Garrison Engineer. It was, however, certified by him that the work
had been completed satisfactorily and taken over on that date. A
Board of Air Force officers held in May, 1968 to take over the run-
way from the engineering authorities pointed out certain defects
such as depressions at several places, lots of cracks, ete.

1.105. The defects in the execution of the work were pointed out
by the Military Engineer Services authorities to the contractor for
rectification in May, 1968 and the latter rectified them by June,
1989 excepting the cracks. In the meantime, it came to notice that
the binder content used in the work was less than that required and
certain characteristics, prescribed in the contract, for bituminous
pavement had not been adhered to and, in particular, the void per-
centage was on the higher side. This was investigated and the mat-
ter was referred by Military Engineer Services authoritieg to the
Central Road Research Institute. The latter confirmed that the
cracks were due to expansion/contraction and high water table in the
area and did not affect the structural soundness of the construction.
It was finally decided in August, 1969 that the pavement was techni-
cally acceptable with price adjustment for variations from contract
specifications as disclosed by the investigation report. A cut of
Rs. 72,658 was effected from the final bill of the contractor in March,
1972 on account of price adjustment of contract specifications with
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regard to change in grading and'void ratio. The comtractor, how-
ever, did not agree to this recovery and an arbitrator wag appointed
by the Engineer-in-Chief in July, 1972 to adjudicate the dispute, The
arbitrator’s award is awaited (December, 1972).

1.106. The Ministry stated (September, 1972) that since the date
of taking over (August, 1969), the runway was being used by trans-
port aircraft and was aslo fit for use by fighter aircrait requiring
2,000 yards of runway. The local Air Force authorities have, how-
cver, intimated (October, 1972) that the defects still remain un-
rectified. They had also stated earlier (June, 1972) that no trial
landings of fighter aircraft had been carried out because of the risk
involved till defects were rectified. Thus, the expenditure of Rs.
25.23 lakhs incurred till the end of March, 1972 on a work which was
commenced in 1965 for improving the airfield has not so far (October,
1972) fully served the intended purpose.

[Paragraph 13 of the Report of Comptroller and Auditor General of
India for the year 1971-72 Union Government (Defence Services).}

1.107. The Commitiee were informed during evidence that the
airfield was perhaps used for Dakotas before it was taken over in
1962. Asked aMout the need for improvement of the airfield, the
Secretary, Ministry of Defence stated: “For the defence air-craft
certain specifications are prescribed because often they have to go
with full load of equipment and men and, therefore, they have laid
down certain speifications for all kinds of air-craft and this is what
the air-field has to conform with in case they are released for use
by the defence.” ’

1.108. Asked when defects were noticed, why the completion cer-
tificate was given, the witness explained that after the completion cer-
tificate one year is allowed for maintenance. For minor defects
they did not withhold completion certificate. The Commitiee want-
ed to know whether it was not desirable to associate the users at the
time of final inspection of work by the Engineering authorities be-
fore the issue of completion certificate to the contractor. The Engi-
neer-in-Chief stated: ‘“The procedure is that the engineers are res-
ponsible for making sure that all the works executed are as per
specifications laid down and they are responsible for the technical
viability of any project. Therefore, the users are not orought in at
this stage because they are technical people. The engineers first
certify that the work has been executed as per the contract and as
per specifications to meet the requirements of the users and then a
Board is constituted.”
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1.109. The specifications provided in the contract and those adopt-
ed by the contractor are given below:

As per Design mix
particular  actually
specifica-  adopted
tions of the at site

contract
L . agreement

Wearing course :
Crushed stone aggregate §* graded. - . 60Y%, 50%
Sand . . 30% 30%
Bituman 60/70. 6% 6%,
Cement . 4% 4%
Fine sand’ 109,
Sand Bitumen Carpet :
Sand 75 % 46%
Cement . 15% I
Bitumen . 10%
Fine sand

3

Asked as to how these deviations from the specifications were al-
lowed, the Engineer-in-Chief deposed: “We did not allow. The En-
gineer-in-charge was to do it. Subsequent to the completion of the
work we have had it tested by the Central Road Research Institute

and they brought out that there were certain shortfalls in the com-
pletion of the work.”

The Secretary, Ministry of Defence, however, stated: “My own

feeling was that there was deficient supervision and in respect of that
Engineer-in-Chief Army H.Q,, is looking into it.”

1.110. According to Audit, the cracks in the pavement were re-
ferred by M.E.S. to the Central Road Research Institute, which
confirmed that the cracks were due to expansion/contraction and
high water table in the area but it did not affect the structural
soundness of the construction. Asked when the pavement was made,
whether proper soil and hydrological tests were conducted, the En-
gineer-in-Chief stated: “They were investigated before the pave-
ment was designed and even the various mixtures were taken to the
laboratory in Jorahat. The Works Engineer got those laboratorv
tests carried out before incorporating them in the contract. I have
not been able to get the record of laboratory tests, becaues nine years
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have elapsed: 1 am still trying to find out if the records can e ob-
tained.”

In a subsequent note, the Ministry of Defence have intimated
that “Engineer-in-Chief’s Branch have stated that the records have
been traced. They have also confirmed that the requisite tests for

soil and sub-soil water were carried out by Geological Survey of
India.”

The Engineer-in-Chief, however, admitted during evidence that
“the defects were due to firstly, there was some deficiency in the

specifications and secondly, the specifications were not correctly im-
plemented.”

1.111. In reply to a question, whether the cracks have been recti-
fied and if so, with what cost, the Ministry of Defence, in a note,
informed the Committee: “Cracks have been rectifieq departmentally
in July, 1973 except a few left for the reference of the Arbitrator,
at the risk and cost of the Contractor at a cost of Rs. 447251 P.
Rs. 20,000/- due to the contractor has been retained by the Depart-
ment as the contractor-hag disputed the final Bill amount. This

amount of Rs. 20,000/- is sufficient to cover the cost of rectification
done by the Department.”

The Secretary, Ministry of Defence, informed during evidence

that besides Rs. 20,000/-, the Deptt. had Rs. 72,000 as earnest money
from the contractor.

The Engineer-in-Chief further informed the Committee that the
arbitrator had not yet given his findings.

1.112. Audit had informed the Committee that the Ministry of
Defence in September, 1972 had stated that since the taking over in
August, 1969 the runway was being used by transport aircraft such
as Dakota, Avro and Fokker Friendship and was also fit for use by
fighter aircraft requiring 2000 yards or runway. On the other hand,
the local Air Force authorities, however, intimated in October, 1972
that the defects still remained unrectified. They had stated earlier
that no trial landings of fighter aircraft had been carried out because
of the risk involved till defects were rectified. When asked to recon-
cile these statements, the Secretary, Ministry of Defence explained:
“The local Officer-in-charge did make the statement when the com-
ment of the Audit was referred to him for his reply, But the Senior
Officers have gone into this matter and they have certified that the
air-field is fully fit for fighter aircraft also. I would like to mention
two things which are necessary—one is suitability of the surface.
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There is a technical word—LC that is prescribed for each kind of
aircraft. The other thing is the length of the runway. We have lgok-
ed into it from these points of view. This field is fully competent o
take the load. It so happens that in this period no need arose for
the use of the fighter aircraft but after we were seized of the matter
just to test them we asked the air force to do some test flights ang
they have done some test flights and some fighter aircrafts have
touched the air-field and taken off.”

The witness added that the test flights were done after the matter
was brought to the notice of the Committee.

1.113. Strengthening of an air field for operation of certain types
of transport and fighter aircraft was taken up through a contractor
at a cost' of Rs. 27.67 lakhs in October 1965 and the work was comple-
ted in April 1968. Although certain ‘minor’ defects were pointed out
by the Garrison Engineer, he certified that the work had been
completed satisfactorily and the completion certificate was issued.
Within a month thereafter a Board of Airforce Officers pointed out
eertain defects such as depression at several places, lots of cracks
etc. and the defects excepting the cracks were rectified by the con-
tractor. In the meantime, it came to light on tests conducted by the
Central Road Researich Institute that there were significant deviations
frem specifications. The Engineer-in-Chief informed the Committec
that there were also some deficiencies in the specifications which
partly accounted for the defects. The Defence Secretary felt that
there was deficient supervision. The Committee deprecate these
serious lapses in a strategic area and stress that responsibility should
be fixed for appriopriate action under intimation to them.

1.114. The Committee note that the contractor had not agreed
to the recovery of Rs. 72658 for the variation from specifications and
that the matter is being adjudicated by arbitrator. The Committee
would like to be informed of the outcome of the arbitration proceed-

ings.

Construction of an air field
Audit Paragraph

1.115. In February, 1967, headquarters of an Air Command accor-
ded sanction for construction of an advance landing ground at 2
station with a runway of 1000 yards length, as an emergency work,
to provide communication facilities in the area by light aircraft. This
work was completed in March, 1968,
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1.116. In the same month the Air Force authorities recommended
extension of the length of this runway so that Dakotas could also
use it without any load restrictions. Accordingly, sanction wag ac-
corded by Air Headquarters in October, 1968 in supersession of the
sanction issued earlier in 1967 by the Air Command, for construction
of a runway of 1400 yards length and other ancillary requirements
such as taxi-track/external services, buildings, etc., at an estimated
cost of Rs. 49.62 lakhs, The extension of the runway, construction of
taxi-tracks, etc.,, which were done through troops or departmentally
employed labour, were completed on 30th November, 1968. Contrac-
tors were employed for construction of buildings, water-supply and
external electrification and these were completed in January, 1969.

1.117. A Board of Officers which -assessed the work in February,
1969 noticed certain defects like unevenness of the surface of the
runways, taxi-track, etc., and depressions. In July, 1969 the Air Force
station also pointed out that throughout the length of the runway
depressions had occurred and shoulders all along the length on both
sides were uneven and soft, ard part of the shoulders had been wash-
ed away due to rain. It was stated that, unless those defects were
removed, it was not safe to operate the landing ground. Subsequently,
in September, 1969, the Command headquarters instructed that fur-
ther work on the landing ground should be stopped and the project
closed after completing works under construction. After this, area—
drainage work was taken up in December, 1969 and completed in the
same month as it was considered important for protection of the
landing ground and Rs. 0.81 lakh were spent on that. The project,
excepting a few works which were not taken up in pursuance of the
instructiong issued in September, 1969 by the Air Command, was
completed on 30th June, 1970.

1.118. The Military Engineer Services authorities stated in August,
1970 that, due to land slides in rainy season in the region, extension
of the runway to the full length of 1400 yards was not possible and
the Air Force authorities should be persuaded to accept a length of
1250 yards. The local Air Force authorities, however, pointed out in
April, 1971 that, due to heavy rains, the edges of the landing ground
had been washed away with the result that only 900 yards were
available for aircraft operations and, as such, it was only fit for
emergency and restricted operations. They also stated in November,
1972 that due to indifferent conditions of the runway surface and
erosion of soil adjacent to the runway, aircraft operations with full
load had not been undertaken in the landing ground.
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1.119. The buildings constructed at the site of the landing groung
are not in use from January, 1970. The expenditure on the project to
the end of July, 1972 was Rs. 41.05 lakhs,

1.120. The Ministry of Defence stated in May, 1972 that, after
extensive reconnaissance carried out by engineers in the area, it
was decided that the site at that particular place was the best in
that area inspite of varioug limitations and that the width of the
runway and shoulders had to be reduced below the standard require-
ment because of space limitations at the site. A Board was constitu-
ted to investigate into the quality of the work done and to find out
the reasons for deterioration of the landing ground. The recommenda-
tions of the Board are under examination (Jaruary, 1973).

[Paragraph 14 of the Report of Comptroller and Auditor General of
India for the year 1971-72, Union Government (Defence Services)]

. 1.121. The Engineer-in-Chief Army Headquarters, informed the
Committee during evidence that a total of Rs. 42.38 lakhs has been
spent on the air-field which ig 1nc]us1ve of Rs. 21.35 lakhg sanctioned
in 1967.

1.122. The extension work on the airfield was completed in
November, 1968, but 3 Board of Officers which assessed the work in
February, 1969 noticed certain defects like unevenness of surface of
the runway etc. and depressions. According to the Board most of the
defects were because of subsidence and erosion of shoulders and
overruns due to heavy rain fall. Asked whether the defects were
due to lack of supervision, the Secretary, Ministry of Defence sub-
mitted during evidence: “It is a very difficulf area with hills all
round. Even to find a landing ground is so difficult. On the other
hand, the need for having some landing ground was very urgent at
that tlme Even the road from Silchur to Aijal was in very bad
shape. So, first they thought that 1000 yds. would be enough and we
could land smaller aircraft. But while the work was on, on reconsi-
deration, in the light of the developing situation, they thought we
must upgrade the airfield to be able to carry Dakotas. So, they decided
to have 1400 yds. The requirement of this additional 400 yds. presen-
ted a very big problem. Either the high hill sides had to be cut down,
which was thought to be impracticable and time-consuming or
depressions as deep as 150 ft. had to be filled up. The engineers de-
cided on the latter. The other factors for consideration are that there
was lot of difficulty in the matter of materials. No satisfactory stone
was available locally. It would cost Rs. 70 lakhs to get good quality
stone from outside. No good sand or lime, which ig the binding mate-
rial, was available. For getting lime from outside the additional cost
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would have been Rs. 10 lakhs. So, they had to have a compromise
and this was the result of that compromise.”

1.123. The Ministry of Defence, in a note, had stated that the site
was selected by the AOC-in-C, HQ Eastern Air Command in Septem-
ber, 1966 on the basis of recommendations submitted by the then
D.W. (Air). Asked about the suitability of this site, the witness stated
that “they saw three or four sites and ultimately the expert advice
wag that this was the best site available.”

1.124. The Audit paragraph states that a Board was constituted
to investigate into the quality of the work done and to find out the
reasons for deterioration of the landing ground. The Ministry of
Defence, who were asked to indicate the findings and recommenda-
tions of the Board and the action taken thereon have stated, in a
note, as under.

“Rapid deterioration of the runway surface is due primarily fo
use of poor quality of locally available stone. Ng repairs or resurfac-
ing work has been done for the last four years. The erosion of
shoulders and overrun of the ALG is primarily due to the fact that
the ALG has been located over heavy fill and in a severe monsoon
region. During construction sufficient time was not allowed for proper
settlement and consolidation of this fill and subsequently when
slips and erosion of fill strated o-curring, adequate counter measures
such as improvement of drainage, provision of protective works in
the shape of retaining/toe walls and stone pitching of slopes have
not been undertaken over the last 4 years.”

Action taken

The various factors contributing to the poor quality of work and
the remedial measures taken by the E-in-C have been listed out in
their letter No. 96976/E. 2 Planning (P.V.) dated 27th August, 1973
at Appendix I.

1.125. Referring to the adverse findings of the Board, the witness
submitted: “As I said, it was a compromise. The engineering skill
was employed to devise ways and means, but the question again was
throwing good money after bad. We had to go down for about 150
ft. Stone had to be brought from outside and also all other materials.
The cost involved was very high. When they did this filling up to
150 ft. depth, they allowed one rainy season to elapse. We were told
that unless 3 or 4 rainy seasons were allowed, it would not be good.
As I had mentioned, the cost of the retention walls would have been
very tigh. They utilized a lot of bamboo logs as the next best thing
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and put them as binding material and also G.C. sheets; and trieq 4,
retain them with their help. The rain in those years was much more

than in earlier years. It was 100” as against the normal quantum
of 65” or 70”.

1.126. In reply to a question, the Engineer-in-Chief informed the
Committee the testing of the materials and locally available stone
was carried out by the College of Military Engineering, Poona.

1.127. According to the report of the Technical Board the design
thickness on examination was found to be inadequate. When asked
as to who did the designing, the witness stated that the design was
done by the College of Military Engineering. They were told abcut
the materials available and samples were sent. When asked as to
how did the design fail and whether this failure was due to wrong
or inadequate designing the witness submitted: “It is not the design
of the pavement which has failed but it is the sub-grade underneath
which has resulted in the failure.”

1.128. When pointed out whether the buildings constructed at
the site of the landing ground were not in use, the Secretary, Minis-
try of Defence, informed the Committee during evidence: “At that
time, when it was thought this will be a regular airfield, these build-
ings were constructed for Air Movement Control Centre; and they
were adequate for that purpose. A little Army unit is there. The
building was adequate for that purpose as also for supply dropping.
Later on, this air-field could not be used. The buildings are still
being utilised for other purposes...the buildings are put to full
utilisation.”

1.129. The witness confirmed during evidence that at the moment
nearly 900 yards of the runway was usable. As regards the informa-
tion of Ministry of Defence in May, 1972 that the aircraft landing
ground was extensively used by Dakotas in 1969 and in the first
part of 1970, the witness explained that at that time the whole
damage was not done and Dakotas could land. At that time 1250
yards was usable. Subsequently it reduced to 900 yards, Asked as
to how 900 yards runway could be utilised, the Committee were in-
formed that with very experienced pilots, this strip could be utilised
for operating with a load of about 1800 kg.

1.130. When asked about the utilisation of the runway, the Com-
mittee were informed during evidence: “In 1968, we used the air-
field by the Otter aircraft. 130 landings were there by them and by
Caravelle 192; landings by helicopters were 60. In 1969, we used it
almost every month and we carried out 333 landings by Dakotas. In
1970, was used it again.”
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1.131. In reply to a question whether the money spent on the
extension of runway has not been fully utilised anqd much less re-
warded, the Secretary, Ministry of Defence, submitted. “I would
say, ‘partially used’. The DGGA people are geiting interested in
this. They have examined the place; and may be, with some slight
modifications, they will be able to make use of it. They are think-
ing of a twice-weekly service to Aijal on the civil side. May be, all
this money will not be lost.”

1.132. The Committee deeply regret to note that extension work
op an advance landing ground completed at a cost of about Rs. 21
lakhs in November 1968 proved to be infructuous. The runway was
extended from 1,000 yards to 1,400 yards. A Board of Officers which
assessed the work in February 1969, noticed defects like unevenness
of surface of the runways, taxi track etc. and depressions. By April
1971, a part of the landing ground, we were told, had been washed
away due to rains with the vesult that only 900 yards were available
for aircraft operations. The Committee have been informed that the
remaining strip could be utilised only for operation of aircraft with
limited load by very experienced pilots. A Technical Board consti-
tuted to investigate the quality of the work done and the reasons for
rapid deterioration in the landing ground had found inadequacies in
preliminary investigation and in design of pavement, lack of techni-
cal knowledge at the execution stage, use of poor quality of construc-
tion materials, poor construction of fills, insufficient/poor drainage
etc. The Committee require that Government should investigate
the matter in the light of the observations of the Technical Board
and fix responsibility for remissness on the part of the authorities

concerned. The action taken in the matter may be reported to the
Committee.

1.133. The Committee note that the possibility of utilisdng the
landing ground for civil aviation is being considered by the Director
General, Civil Aviation. The Committee would like to be apprised
of the progress made in this regard.

Payment to an electrict supply company
Audit Paragraph

1.134. Under an agreement entered into in September, 1967, by
the Ministry Engineer Services authorities with an electric supply
company for bulk supply of electric energy to a station, the com-
pany was to charge the consumer at the flat rate of 21 paise per unit
but this charge was subject to a special extra discount to be allowed
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to the consumer based on the number of units consumed in 3
month. In case the electric energy consumed was very much less,
the company was entitled to received a minimum annual charge of
Rs. 22,387 irrespective of the energy consumed during any calender
year. Further, the consumer was not permitted to purchase or
generate or otherwise obtain electric energy except through this
company. Bulk supply of electric energy commenced from April,
1968. Since then, the number of units consumeq every month was
more than 41,000, thus entitling the consumer to a special extra dis-
count of 50 per cent under the terms of the agreement. But neither
the company allowed this special extra discount in its monthly bills
nor the Military Engineer Services authorities detected this omission,
before admitting them for payment. This resulted in excesg pay-

ment of Rs. 8.83 lakhs to the company for the period April, 1968 to
March, 1972.

1.135 When the excess payment was pointed out by audit to the
Military Engineer Services authorities in March, 1972, the latter
addressed the electric supply company immediately to refund the
amount paid in excess. The company, however, refused (June, 1972)
the refund claim on the ground that, from the outset, the load (402
to 615 K.V.A) was far in excess of the maximum demand of 300
K. V.A. stipulated in the agreement and, although this excessive de-
mand and the need for amending the agreement was pointed out
by it in July, 1968, the Military Engineer Services authorities did
not take any action but continued to pay the bills at the maximum
rate, thereby signifying acceptance of the position.

1.136. The Ministry stated (October, 1972) that action was under
way to refer the dispute to arbitration and that a board of officers
had been convened to fix responsibility.

[Paragraph 15 of the Report of Comptroller and Auditor-General of
India for the year 1971-72, Union Government (Defence Services) ].

1.137. According to the Audit paragraph, an excess payment of
Rs. 8.83 lakhs has been made to the company from April, 1968 to
March, 1972, as the company did not allow a special extra discount
of 50 per cent which the consumer was entitled from the beginning
of 1968 in terms of the agreement.

1.138. The Committee desired to know whether an attested/certi-
fied true copy of the contract agreement concluded by the Chief
Engineer, Central Zone, Nagpur, was sent to the following authori-
ties for necessary action:
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(8) Garrison Engineer, Jabalpur, for verification and certifi-
cation of the bills of the Company for payment.

(b) Unit Accountant, GE'’s Office, Jabalpur, for checking the
bills of the Company with reference to the terms of the
agreement before admitting them for payment,

(c) CDA, Central Command, Meerut, for check of the bills of
the company during post audit of cash vouchers.

The Ministry of Defence, in a note, stated: “Through an over-
sight, attested/certified true copies of the contract agreement were
not sent by the Chief Engineer, Central Zone, Nagpur (now shifted
to Jabalpur), to the Garrison Engineer (East), Jabalpur, Unit Ac-
countant, GE’s Office, Jabalpur and the Controller of Defence Ac-
ounts, Central Command, Meerut, for necessary action, prior to the
6th May, 1972. However, a copy of the draft agreement was avail-
able with the authorities mentioned above.”

1.139. The Committee then enquired whether these bills were not
checked with the refernce to the terms and conditions of the con-
tract agreement. If so, as how the concerned officials failed to notice
during the scrutiny of the bills of the company that the company
had omitted to allow the special discounts due to the Government.
In reply, the Ministry of Defence stated: “It appears that the bills
of the Company were not checked by the officials concerned with
reference to the terms and conditions of the agreement concluded
with the Company due to negligence on their part. As such, the
omission made by the Electric Company in nit allowing discount in
the bills to the Government, was not detected.”

1.140. It has been stated that the Elecric Supply Company re-
fused the refund claim on the ground that the actual load was con-
sistently more than that stipulated in the agreement and, although
this excessive load and the need for amending the agreement was
pointed out by the company in July, 1968, the Military Engineering
Services authorities did not take any action but continued o pay
the bills at the maximum rate, thereby signifying acceptance of the
position. When asked about the action taken on the Electric Com-
pany's letter of July, 1968, the Ministry, in written note stated: “On
receipt of the Electric Company’s letter of July 1968 addressed to
the Commander, Works Engineer, Jabalpur. copy to Garrison Engi-
neer (East), Jabalpur, the CWE’s Office asked for comments from
the Garrison Engineer. The latter sent his comments to the CWE
on 16th July. 1968 to the effect that actual maximum demand was
600 KVA and requested the VWE to have the agreement revised in
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consultation with the Electric Company. Available records do not
indicate that any action thereon was taken in the Office of the Com-
mander Works Engineer,”

The Ministry further informed the Committee that from Feb-
ruary, 1972 the bills of the Electric Company were being paid under
protest and the total amount of discount not allowed by the Electric

Company for the period April, 1972 to March, 1973 came to about
Rs. 2,63,450.

1.141. It was stated that the dispute was being referred to arbi-
tration and a board of officers had been convened to fix responsi-
bility. In a written note, the Ministry have furnished the following
findings of the Board held on 15th February, 1973:

“(i) Failure to check the Electric Compamy’s bills with reference to
the terms and conditions of the agreement

In accordance with the proforma attached to each monthly bill
presented by the Electric Company, the following Officers have fail-
ed to check the bills as per the terms and conditions of the agree-
ment, especially clause 10 thereof:

1. SDO I|IC E/M (E), Jabalpur.
2. Unit Accountant, Garrison Engineer (East), Jabalpur.
3. Garrison Engineer (East), Jabalpur.

(it) Delay in the distribution of copies of the ‘agreement in the
Office of Chief Engineer, Central Zone, Nagpur (now shifted to
Jabalpur) .

The actual date of commissioning the power, viz., 23rd April, 1968
was to be entered in the draft agreement, before it could be finalis-
ed and put on the Stamp Paper. Thereafter, attested copies of the
final agreement were to be distributed to all concerned by the Chief
Engineer, Central Zone, Nagpur (now at Jabalpur). In his letter
dated 28th June, 1968, Commander Works Engineers, Jabalpur, in-
timated the actual date of commissioning power to the Chief Engi-
neer, Central Zone without asking for its insertion in the agreement
and for distributing copies thereof to all concerned. This letter was,
therefore, just filed in HQ, C.E. Central Zone, without taking any
further action on it, even though seen by SE (SO I) and AEE
(SO III). )

(iii) Failure to @mend the agreement in wiew of the nvaxunum
demand pointed out by the Electric Company.
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(Available records do not indicate that any action was taken in
the Office of the Commander Works Engineer.)”

1.142. The Committee regret to find that an excess payment of Rs.
11.46 lakhs has been made to an Electric Company from April 1968
to March 1973 due to negligence on the part of officials who failed
to check the bills of the company with reference to the terms and
conditions of the agreement under which the consumer was entitled
to a special extra discount of 50 per cent for the actual consumption.
The Committee note that a Board of Officers convened in February,
1973 to fix responsibility has found three officers responsible. The
Committee recommend that appropriate action should be taken
against the erring officers. They would await a report in this regard.

1.143. The Committee would also like to know the terms of the
settlement of the dispute between the Department and the Electric
Supply Company.

Accommeodation fer certain Defence units

Audit Paragraph

1.144. In 1964 a proposal was initiated to shift three Defence units
to another location as their continuance at the existing location en-
tailed recurring expenditure of Rs. 12.77 lakhs per annum on account
ol rent for the hired lands, belonging to Post Trust and Railways
authorities, on which they were located. A recee-cum-siting board
convened under the orders of the Command Headquarters issued in
July, 1964 recommended location of these units at a new site in the
same station where adequate requisitioned/hired land was available.

1.145. A project for construction of demestic accommodation at a
cost of Rs. 71.09 lakhs was sanctioned by Government in October, 1976
lo provide residential accommodation for all ranks of the units to
be located in the new site. The service personnel of these units
were shifted from their existing residential accommodation, which
was mostly Government owned, to the newly constructed domestic
accommodation by the end of June, 1971 although their units con-
tinued to function at their existing location due to the fact that
accommodation to house them had not been built at the new site.

1.148. Although sanction wag accorded in August, 1967 for con-
Struction of administrative and technical accommodation for one of
the units at the new site at a cost of Rs. 60.92 lakhs, execution of the
work was suspended under instructions received from Army Head-
Quarters in March, 1969 as the question of siting the technical and
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administrative accommodation of all the units was under review. A
user recee-cum-siting and costing board was held in July, 1969 to
plan accommodation for these units. ,After that the work, which was
susperided in March, 1969, was taken up again after June, 1972 and
is expected to be completed in December, 1974. A proposal for con-
struction of administrative and technical accommodation for the
remaining two units was initiated in May, 1970 and sanctioneq in
January, 1972; the work, estimated to cost Rs. 234.27 lakhs, is expect-
ed to be completed in July, 1975.

1.147. Consequent on the delay in provision of administrative and
technical accommodation for the three units at the new site and their
continuance in their existing location, Government vehicles are
deployed for conveying the personnel from the domestic accommoda-
tion at the new site to their offices situated at a distance of about
33 kms. and back and also for collection ¢f their midday meals en-
tailing recurring expenditure of about Rs. 13,000 per month from
July, 1971, In the meantime, expenditure is also being incurred on
payment of Rs. 12.77 lakhg per annum ag rent for the hired land on
which the units continue to be located.

[Paragraph 16 of the Report of Comptroller & Auditor General of
India, for the year 1971-72, Union Government, (Defence Services)]

1.148. The Ministry of Defence, in a note, furnished to the Gom-
mittee, have given the following details of the areas of land hired/
requisitioned at the new sites and the dates when these were hired/
requisitioned:—

(a) Area used for projects KANDIVILLY MALAD
(i) Requisitioned . . . 13639 acres. 117- 36 acres.
(ii) Hired . . . . 17°97 s 020
(b) Date of hiring/requisitioning. . 1943-45§ 1942-43
(¢c) Rent paid for hired lands. . Rs., 529°24 Rs. 300°00
per annum per annum
(d) Rent paid for requisitioned land . Rs, 796743 Rs. 12,863 65
per annum per annum
(e) Land since acquired. . . . 13639 33- 808

1.149. The Committee desired to know why the construction of
domestic accommodation was taken up before the question of shifting
the units and constructing administrative and technical accommoda-
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tion was finally Se&lgd- The Ministry of Defence, in a note furnished
to the Committee, have submitted as under: ‘

“In January, 1964, Headquarter Southern Command recommended
that the Ordnance Depot including Vehicles Depot Workshop, AFMSD
SEWRI which were located on BOMBAY Port Trust land be shiftec{
to KANDIVILLI. The proposal was discussed in a meeting held at
Army Headquarter under the Chairmanship of the QMG on 30th
March, 1964_and it was decided that a Boarq should be ordered to go
into the question of planning of accommodation for Ordnance Transit
Depot, AFMSD and Engineer Transit Park at KANDIVILLI. Con-
sequegtly, a Board was held by HQ Southern Command from 31st
July to 12th August, 1964. The Board recommended that separate
projects be prepared for units as under:

(2) Phase I—Accommodation for AFMSD ang Cold Storage.

(b) Phase II—Accommodation for Ordnance Depot including
Vehicle Depot Workshop.

The Board proceedings and other connected documents were
re eived by Army HQ in April, 1965.

2. In a meeting held under the Chairmanship of the Additional
Secretary on 22nd April, it was agreed that the requisitioned/hired
lands available at KANDIVILLI constituted a compact area suitable
for location of these units/installations.

3. In pursuance of this, a project for provision of storage, technical
and administrative accommodation for AFMSD including Cold Sto-
rage which was planned during Phase I of the overall project was
sanctioned at a cost of Rs. 60.92 lakhs on 19th August, 1967. Another
project for provision of domestic accommodation for all the units to
he located at KANDIVILLI ang MALAD at an estimated cost of
* Rs. 71.09 lakhs was also sanctioned on 6th October, 1967.

4. Both the sanctioned projects i.e, accommodation for AFMSD
and Cold Storage, and domestic accommodation for all the units
(Ordnance Depot including Vehicle Depot Workshop and AFMSD and
Cold Storage) were progressed simultaneously. While the project
for domestic accommodation continued to make progress un-hindered,
the AFMSD and Cold Storage was suspended as the land require-
ments at KANDIVILLI/MALAD came under review. The
reviews took -place under the Chairmanship of Joint Secretary
(Q) at New Delhi and at Bombay during March, 1969 and it was
decided to locate Otdnance Complex and AFMSD (including Cold
Storage) at KANDIVILLI, Consequent to these decisions, fresh
Boarq for Ordnance Depot and Vehicle Depot Workshop EME was
ordered for july 1969. The processing of the Boatd proceedings for ;
369 L.S.—5. ' ’
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according administrative approval from the Government took time.
These proceedings were further delayed due to Bangla Desh problem
and war during 1971. It was only in January, 1872 that Phase II—
accommodation for Ordnance Depot including Vehicle Depot Work-
shop was sanctioned.

5. It would, therefore, be seen that the decision to shift these
unitg as well as personnel was taken simultaneously. Whereas the
domestic accommodation project did not pose any problem and got
completed by May 1971, the other projects were delayed, firstly due
to review of land requirements and secondly due to events of 1971.
This delay was forced due to circumstances and could not be avoided.”

1.150. In reply to a question, whether all aspects relating to the
location of the ordnance Depots and the Armed Forces Medical
Stores Depot were not fully considered earlier in 1964 when the sit-
ing Board was conveneq for the pyrpose and subsequently when
sanction was accorded by Government for construction of domestic
as well as administrative and technical accommodation, the Minis-
try of Defence, in a note, stated: “The Board which was convened
during 1964, for the purpose of planning accommodation for Ord-
nance Depot including Vehicle Depot Workshop EME, AFMSD in-
cluding Cold Storage, proposed Engineer Transit Park and domestic
accommodation for all the three units, had taken into consideration
various factors regarding extent of the hired/mequisitioned land
available and utilised in COD MALAD and ESD KANDIVILLI areas.
It was after due consideration of various factors that the Board had
recommended that the area at MALAD was more economical and
suitable for married accommodation for the three units. For the
Technical and Administrative accommodation projects for the three
units, the Board had recommended that these should be sited in

KANDIVILLI area.

2. There has been some delay in providing Technical and Admin-
istrative accommodation for the units in question. But this was not
intentional. The delay occurred as a result of unforeseen factors.
In fact, the Administrative and Technical accommodation for the
AFMSD including Cold Storage was sanctioned on 18th August. 1967
i.e. about two months earlier than the project for domestic accom-
modation in all the units was sanctioned. But on-account of a pro-
posal to locate the entire Ordnance Complex including the COD
MALAD at KANDIVILLI, the latter project had to be revised. The
suggestion to locate entire Ordnance Complex at KANDIVILLY
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necessitated review of the land requirements for the location of
KLP units including AFMSD at KANDIVILLI and MALAD.”

1.151. The Committee were informed that although the User-
Recce-Cum-Siting and Costing Board was held in July, 1969, the pro-
ceedings were received in Army Headquarers in November, 1969. The
modifications to the administrative approval were issued in Novem-
ber, 1971 and thereafter tenders were floated in June, 1972. Giving
reasons for the delays, the Ministry submitted: “A User-Recce-
Cum-Siting and Costing Board for planning accommodation for
Ordnance Complex including Vehicle Depot Workshop EME and
AFMSD at KANDIVILLI was held on 29th July, 1969 and subse-
quent days. This Board was presided over by a Brigadier and had
14 members alongwith three members in attendance. The cost of
the project was approximately 237 lakhs. The Board proceedings
were finalised on 3rd November, 1969. Thus, it was only a period
of three months that was spent by the Board to finalise these pro-
ceedings. A Board for a project of this magnitude would normally
take 1} to 2 months. Three months time taken by the Board is con-
sidered not unduly excessive. On receipt of the proceedings at Army
HQ. these were progressed with the Government for sanction. Usu-
ally it takes 1 to 13 years to process a project costing more than 2
crores for sanction with the Government. While this was being
done and the project was in final stages of its being sanctioned, in
August, 1971 the Government held the sanction of this project in
abeyance, due to economic conditions because of Bangla Desh Re-
fugees. It was only after the War of 1971 that the Government ac-
corded their sanction in January, 1972. After the project was sanc-
tioned by the Government and released for execution; Engineers
proceeded with their procedural and technical actions and to float
necessary tenders. After these formalities, which usually takes 3
to 4 months time, the work on this project and AFMSD and Cold
Storage was commenced in June, 1972. There was no undue delay
in these actions/events.

Having regard to the involved nature of the various issues con-
nected with the two projects, the time taken for the jssued of
sanction/amendment to the administrative approval, already issued
Was unavoidable; but not excessive.

It woulq, thus, be seen that whatever decisions were taken at
various stages were so taken in the best interest of the state, eg.
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- (i) When it was decided to shift the pnits to - KANDIVILLI/
MALAD, the guiding factor was to ensure saving on account of high
rent paid for the lands on which the units were located;

(ii) When the review of the location of all the three units at
KANDIVILLI was on, it was decided not to make further contrac-
tual commitment in respect of Administrative and technical accom-
modation for the AFMSD at KANDIVILLI bevond commitmenis
already made, as further commitments would have resulted in con-
siderable extra expenditure after the re-siting of the units.”

The Quarter-Master General, Ministry of Defence, however, ad-
mitted during evidence that “It is a fact that lengthy procedure is
involved. At the moment the Ministry has appointed a Study
Group to improve the procedure so that projects are completed
early.”

1.52. The latest position regarding execution of the project, as
furnished by the Ministry of Defence, is as under:

“The present position in respect of Administrative and Tech-
nical accommodation for the Ordnance Complex and

AFMSD (including Cold Storage) at KANDIVILLI is as
follows:—

(a) Ordnance Complex.—Contracts for Rs. 100 lakhs provid-
ing 18 storage sheds and 2 Vehicle sheds alongwith ex-
ternal services for water and electricity have already
been entered into and the present overall progress is
42 per cent. 15 storage sheds are 100 per cent readv
and five sheds are 44 per cent complete. The fire fight-
ing buildings and static tanks, Depot office and sanitary
connections are 42 per cent complete. The contract was
suspended on 25th August, 1973 under Government
orders till 31st January, 1974 due to paucity of funds.
The work has since been reviewed (on 24th November.
1973). The remaining works could not be contracted by
the Engineers due to non-availability of sufficient funds
in 1972-73 and restrictions imposed during 1973-74.

(b) AFMSD & Cold Storage—This work was commenced
for execution during June, 1972, The present progress
of the work is 60 per cent. This project was also sus-
pended (on 25th August, 1973) by the Governhment due
to paucity of funds and has been revived only during
Decemnbér, 1973. This project also is making slow pro-
gress due to financial stringency.
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9. As'per thé origindl estimates, it was expected tHat the Ord-
" ‘natce Complex project would be ready by March, 1975
and AFMSD and Cold"Storage by October, 1974. Due to
general constraint ‘on finances and reduction of tunds for

the’ Army Works these projects are likely to take longer
time than expected for their completion.”

1.153. The Committee were informed during evidence that the
revised estimate for Armed Forces Medical Stores Depot and Cold
Storage project was Rs. 62.16 1akhs and the total expendiiurc on it
till September, 1973 was Rs. 39.66 lakhs. For Ordnance Complex,
the estimate was Rs. 236.56 lakhs and the expenditure on it till Sep-
tember, 1973 had been Rs. 99.59 lakhs.

1.164. According to Audit paragraph, a recurring .expenditure of
zbout Rs. 13,000 per month was being incurred from July, 1971 on
conveyance of personnel to their offices and collection of their mid-
day meals. The Committee were informed during evidence that it
had been stopped and the personnel were using public conveyance
ete.

1.155. The Committee note that in pursuance of the decision taken
in 1964 to shift three defence units to anether location, a project for
provision of storage, technical and administrative accommodation
for only one unit was sanctioned in August, 1967 and another project
for domestic accommodation of all the three units at a cost of
Rs. 71.09 lakhs was sanctioned in October, 1967. While the project
for domestic accommodation was completed in May, 1971 and the
service personnel of the units were shifted to the new site, the con-
struction of project for provision of storage, technical and adminis-
trative accommeodation was suspended in March, 1968 as the ques-
tion of siting the technical and administrative accommodation for
all the units was under review. This review was compleied and
modifications to administrative approval was given in November,
1971. The expenditure sanction was accorded only in January, 1972
The work commenced in June, 1972 and it was again suspended in
August, 1973 due to financial stringency. In the meantime, expen-
diture is being incurred on payment of Rs. 12.77 lakhs per annum as
rent for the hired land on which the units continue to be located
besides expenditure of Rs. 13,000 per month from July, 1971 on trans-
port of officers till recently. The Committee are not satisfied with
the explanation for the lack of synchronisation of the construction
of domestic accommeodation and the technical and administrative
buildings. This should be possible to a far greater extent than is
suggested by the Ministry’s spokesman. Between 1967 and 1969,
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what extra-ordinary development took place which made it impera.
tive to suspend action on portions of the project em which work hag
not commenced? And then it was over two and half years later,
six months after the domestic accommodation had heen completely
constructed, the approval was given to mecessary modifications in
the scheme. All this could have been avoided, if it were well inten.
tioned and had those taking the decision to suspend action had satis.
fied themselves before taking the decision that the modifications
necessary were of such vital significance that they would outweigh
the financial loss involved in suspension.

1.156. Admittedly the present procedures are not satisfactory.
The Committee desire that the Study Group appointed by the Min-
istry to suggest improvement in the procedures should speedily com-
plete their study and that steps should be taken to cut out avoidable
delays in future. In the meantime, the Committee trust that the
remaining work will be completed expeditiously.

New DreLHI; JYOTIRMOY BOSU,
April 15, 1974, Chairman,

Chaitra 25, 1836 (Saka) ‘ Public Accounts Committee.




_ APFENDIX 1
(Vide paragraph 1.124 of the Report)
ARMY HEADQUARTERS
ENGINEER-IN-CHIEF'S BRANCH
DHQ PO Niw Derui-11
27th August, 1973.
‘No. 96976/E 2 Plg (Plg)
To
E-in-C’s List ‘A’ & ‘B’
PREMATURE FAILURE—ALG
A case has recently come to light where an ALG constructed in
a forward area has failed prematurely, The investigation has
revealed that the failure was due to the following reasons:-—

(a) Inadequate Preliminary Investigation|Collection of Data.
The executive authorities undertook the work without
collection of sufficient data for planning and design of
ALG: —

{i) Type of soil and its CBR.

{(ii) Meteorological data.

(iii) Type of stones available locally and its structural use-
fulness.

{(b) Design of Pavement. The design thickness on later
examination was found to be inadequate and the materials
used were not properly selected. The design was also
not based on the soil investigation report and TT 1/86.

{c) Use of Poor Quality of Construction Materigls. The
local stone used was of inferior quality in abrasion and
attrition. ‘

«{d) Poor Compaction of Fills. The fills were not compacted
to the desirable densities. No targets for density were
fixed or checks made. The construction of protective
works to these fills was completely ignored.

(e) Insufficient| Poor .Drainagc. The drainage provided was
insufficient and was based on inadequate meteorological
data.

85
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(f) Inadequate i.me of Completwn. The time given for
completion of the ALG to engineers was too short. The
implication of this‘wes not brought to the notice of users.

(g) Lack of Technical Knowledge at Execution Stage.
(i) CBR..of compacted subgrade was not checked.

(ii) Checks during execution on the quality of stones used

and its variance with the design assumptions, was not
done.

(iii) Compaction of subgrade in suitable layers was not
done,
2. To avoid recurrence of premature failures of pavements, the
E-in<C directs that the following points will be borne in mind white
planning, designing and execution of the ALG|Airfields:—

(a) Preparation. Before design, the following must be
done: —

(i) Soil investigation must be done in detail.

(ii) Availability .of local materials and determination of its
properties with a view to decide on its use as per speci-
fications laid down.

(ii) Collection oi meteorological data.

(b) Design of Pavement. The design must be based on
TI 1,66 and should, be approved by this HQ before com-
. mencement of the work.

(c) Time of Completion. The time required for completion
* of the work must be worked out methodically based on
resources available, technical requirements and restric-
tions of work. In case the time allowed for execution of
the job is compressed by the local Cammanders due to
operational reasons, the consequences of poor workman-
shxp and eventual failure at a later stage due to restric-
téd time of completion must be brought out to ftheir
" notfce beforé undertaking the work and it should be made
known that the expedient is only to meet an operationai
urgency and NOT a long term servxce

(d) Dmme Adoquate dra;nage bﬂSCd on: relevant meleo-
rological data must be provided. .

(e) Protective Works. Suitable Protec.tive works must be
provided where necessary.
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) Execution of ‘work. The various checks required at each
stage must be specified and strictly observed.

() Compaction. Compaction must be done at the specitied

moijsture content to achieve design density. This must
be done in. layers and thickness of layers specified.

Sd|- (HARISH CHANDRA)

Brig

Director Designs

Engineer-in-Chief



Summary of main conclusions|Recommendations

Minist y/Department

Conclusion/Recommendation

concerned
] 2 3 4
1 1.26 Defence

An assault boat was designed and developed by the Research
and Development Organisation to replace an imported one and it
was accepted in 1962 for introduction into service. 2587 boats of
this type were procured during July 19684 to September 1969 from
four firms and a public sector undertaking at the rate ranging from
Rs. 3800 to Rs, 4300 per boat. On receipt of a complaint ffom one
Army Unit in July 1971 that all the boats held by it, which were
supplied by two firms, were defective, the matter was investigated
in October 1971 and found that of 811 boats costing Rg 39.92 lakhs
supplied by the two firms 608 boats (297 with field units and 311
in stock in an Ordnance Depot) were defective. The seams of all
joints of the boats disintegrated when the boats were inflated and
put in water as the canvas at the seams had become brittle. In-
vestigations disclosed that this was caused by Oxidisation of the
adhesive used by these two firms to fix the seams of the boats, As
the cost of repair involving complete replacement of canvas hull
and bottom would be equal to the cost of procurement of these

89
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was automatically used along with adhesive. The Scienti-
fic Adviser admitted that it was unfortunate that they
did not test the adhesive whether it was fully neutralised
and that it should have been done.

No warranty clause was included in the contracts, ‘The
Committtee were informed by the representative of the
DGS & D that the warranty clause is included in respect
of those items where defects can come to light only
when the stores are put to use and that in this case
neither the indentor nor the Defence Inspectorate asked
for a warranty clause. No action could be taken against

‘the firm as they supplied stores to specifications. It is

surprising that the Defence Department did not take this

normal precaution especially because no detatle@ :speci-

fications for the adhesive were laid down by the Re-
search and Development Organisation and it was admit-

tedly not possible to determine by usual inspection

whether the adhesive used was going to c{;{eﬁgﬁorgté.

Although all the boats were supplied by the two firms
during Febfuary 1966 to September 1969 .it.required am
investigation in October 1971 on the basis pf a complaint
from a single Army Unit, to find out that. as many. as 608 .
hoats were defective. The defects ought to have come to



Defence

notice much earlier and in the normal course of insped:
tion in the Depots and Units, It is contenchd that the

defects were noticed only when thé { were floated
and could not have been dxscmféréd ‘earile 3 he Com-
mittee is not wholly satisfied.” In a matf&suégi as this

extra special care must be taken havidg réga
ing on Defence préparedness.” The Comh Lee ‘did
"any explanation for this setfous failure.! ©F

The Committee desiré that the aboVeé ldpses should be gone into
for fixing responsibility and taking "appropriate action as also to
ensure that they do not recur in future,

The Committee were informed during evidence that ocut. of the
2587 boats purchased, only 669 -are now in serviceable conditiore
They have not been teld as to how many of the unserviceable boats
had been actually used and for how long. No log books are being
maintained for these boats although for less costly items like motor
cycles, trailers and mules they are maintained. The Committee
consider it essential to maintain log books for indigenously develop-
ed equipments of this kind which will help to study their perfor
mance and to determine the actual life in use. Such performance
data may also be useful in deciding upon modifications in the

designs to improve performance.

According to the representative of the Research and Develop-
ment QOrganisation even Bees wax is not quite a good adhesive

1L
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Defence

material and it has also indicated a very slow rate of water seepage.
The Committee, however, are not very clear as to how many boats
wherein this adhesive was used also developed defects. They learn
that a different adhesive viz. Bitmarin No. 3 was used in the im-
ported assault boat and that this was known to the Research and
Development Organisation when the indigenous development of
the boat was undertaken as early as 1949. However, there is stated
to be nothing on the file to indicate why this adhesive was not used
by the organisation. The Committee understand that a new design
of the boat is going to be introduced. In view of the fact that the
Bees wax is regarded as not quite good and completely waterpoof
and the neoprene based adhesive is twenty times more costly, the
Committee desire that the Research and Development Organisation
should find out a cheaper but effective as well as indigenously avail-
able adhesive for the newly designed boats. It is regrettable that they
do not seem tn have applied their mind to this so far.

The Committee note that the shelf life period for these indi-
genous boats was fixed in mid-fifties as five yeats hﬁg iﬁﬁv account
the natural process of deterioration. It was stated that the average
life of the bocts in use would be less. No assessment in thig regard
has been mad: However, the Committee find thet as sy as 137
old imported boats which had earlier been dee!mll “opsolete in
April, 1971, were found still in serviceable condition a § these were

zl
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issued to units to meet operational requirement in December, 1971,
If these boats which must have been imported long before 1962,
were good enough even after 10 years, the Commitiée see no reason
why the indigenous ones should not last longer than 5 m

What has been stated in the above paragraphs adds up to a
situation in an important organisation of the Defence Ministry
which cannot but cause concern. The present procedures for the
storage inspection and issue of vital stores are such that the un-
usability of a vital item may not be discovered until it is required
for operational use. It does not require much imagination to see
what a serious situation this could land the country’s armed forces
in. The Committee, therefore, while expressing their grave concern
at the somewhat mechanical lackadai social and unimaginative
attitude that the Ministry’s spokesman showed, would strongly
urge the Ministry to carry out a thorough review of the procedures
relating to acceptance of operational stores, their maintenance
during storage and their inspection before issue to ensure that they
are in the state of efficiency they should be.

The Committee also consider that the Research and Develop-
ment Organisation does not appear to be kept in the close touch
that it should be in respect particularly of items of stores, the pro-
duction of which is newly established in the country, throughout
their life, shelf life or life in actual use,

€L
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The Committee cannot but deprecate the slackness and un-
preparedness of a vital organisation like Defence Department and
its Research and Development Organisation,

-, 1.53 Deteree The Committee are concerned to note serious lapses that led to
the procurement of 303 cubic meters of defective teak logs af a cost
of Rs. 3.5 lakhs from a firm. Of these 249.045 cubic meters were re-
ceived by a Naval Stores Depot at Bombay and the rest at another
Depot at Cochin. From the following narration of facts the lapse
would p:.ma facie appear to be malafide:

(i) Against an indent placed by Naval Headquarters in
August 1969, the DGS&D invited tenders. Out of the
tenders received the quotation of the firm from whic¢h
the logs were purchased was the second lowest. The quo-
tation of the lowest tenderer was not accepted as his capa-
city was not recommended by the Defence mspecmrate

(ii) The Naval Headquatters in a letter dabﬂ %lﬂth Aug'ust
1969 had requested the DGS&D that in regard to inspec-
tion of the logs procured from trade agg;nst.thgu' indent,
the Surveyor of Stores, Naval' Dockyard, should
be the Inspecting Officer. Accordingly, the ‘tender en-
quiry issued on 16th August 1969 by the DGS&D indi-

17



cated that the inspection would be carried sut by the Sur-
‘veyor of Stores. Strangely, the firm is stated to have
tendered on the basis that the inspection’ would be by
Inspector of General Stores. The Defénce Secrétary
stated during evidence that the supplier “perhaps had his
own reasons for choosing the Inspector of General Stores”
and that “he perhaps expected a better deal”

(iii) It is surprising that the vital discrepancy between the ten-
der enquiry and the tender offer was not noticed by the
DGS&D. In the Acceptance of Tender inspection by Ins-
pector of General Stores was stipulated as indiuteé by

the grm.

(iv) It was only after the Naval Headquarters took up t]ie
matter on 28th May 1970 that the firm was approached for
a change in the inspection authority and it did not agree.

(v) It was decided on 23rd October, 1970, at a meeting held in
the Directorate of Supplies and Disposals, attended also
‘by the representative of the Naval Headquarters: that in
view of the attitude of the firm, the status quo should be
maintained but the Surveyor of Stores should be asso-
clated with the Inspector while carrying out inspection. .In
the meantime, the first lot of logs meant for Cochin De-
pot, tendered by the firm were accepted by the Inspector.
Surprisingly, neither the DGS&D nor the Naval Head-
quarters communicated the decision to the Inspector of

LT



General Stores concerned. On the contrary the communi.
cation was sent to an Inspector unconnected with this
purchage. The Committee could not get any explanation
for this slip. The Defence Secretary stated: “Unfortus.
nately, we have not been able to put our finger on the real
trouble spot.”

(vi) On receipt of the first consignment in January 19711, the
Bombay Depot noticed that the Suweyor of Stores had
not signed the inspection report and took up the matter
with their headquarters. Before it was sorted out entire
supplies were received at both the depots by June 1971
Significantly enough the Cochin Depot, whith recéived the
first consignment as early as July 1970, did not rdise the
matter although a copy of the letter of 12th Aupust, 1989
of the Naval Headquarters regarding mspectxon of the
logs had gone to them.

1

#

(vii) The Bombay Depot arranged for dn mspécﬁ\'m by the &n‘-
veyor of Stores on receipt of the first consignmefit - and
found that most of the logs had defetts an@ tie logs weres
rejected whereas Cochin Depot atcepted the suifiphes

ol



(viii)

on the strength of the vpinion of the professional authority
on the pretext that the defects were within the tolerance
limit allowed by the concerned Inspector of General Stores.

During a jointlinspection of the logs at the Bombay De-
pot in October-November, 1871, ordered by the Director of
Inspection (General Stores) at the instance of the Naval
Headquarters, which brought out serious defects, lhere was
reportedly a difference of opinion between the Inspec’tot
of General Stores and the Surveyor of Naval, Stores.
The DGI organisation over-ruled the opinion of the Ins-
peetor of General Stores, A Board of enquiry which went
into the matter subsequently, also held that the supply,
by and large, did not conform to the specification and the
Inspector was responsible.

(ix) The defects noticed at Bombay Depot having been brought

to the notice of the DGS&D, they reported the rejection
of supplies in respect of that depot to the firm and asked
for replacement, The firm did not accept the rejection and
contended inter alia that logs supplied to both the Cochin
and Bombay Depots were inspected and accepted, the
source of supply was the same, inspection was carried ou}
by the same officer and that the standard of acceptance
was also the same.

LL
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1.77

Defence/Agricuhure
Deptt. of Food

The Committee learn that on receipt of certain information in
1972, the CBI made some enquiries but did not pursue further, How-
ever, after the Committee took evidence, the CBI has been asked
to investigate the case. The Committee desire that the CBI should
inter alia go into the above aspects of the case and that on the basis
of the findings stringent action should be taken against al] the delin-
quents to effectively deter malpractice in the vital Defence estab-
lishment. The Committee would await a report in this regard with-
in three months. The Committee would also like to know the out
come of the arbitration proceedings initiated at the instance of the
firm. . .

The Committee are surprised that 4.514 tones of what can only
be regarded as ground coffee was purchased as soluble coffee at a
cost of Rs. 154 lakhs through the Chief Director of Purchaies,
Ministry of Food and Agriculture to meet Defence requirements from
a firm which had no capacity for the manufacture of soluble coffee
It should be moted that the price of soluble coffee was about four
times the price of ground coffee. The following interesting points
emerge out of the examingtion of the case by the Committee in so
far as the conduct of the Purchasing Organisation is concerned:

(i) The order for the supply was placed on the firm in July
1969 without verifying the capacity of the firm.’ it is
strange that it was assumed that everyone who c&n pro-

8



duce ground coffee can also produce soluble coffee and
the list of registered suppliers of ground coffee was ap-

also.

(ii) The Committee find that at present only three firms have

(iil)

established manufacture of soluble coffee in the couniry,

They are unable to understand how this fact was not

known to the Purchasing Organisation. The Organisa-
tion never consulted the Coffee Board or the Commerce
Ministry in the matter. Moreover, it was not for the first

time that the soluble coffee was being procured for the De-

fence Services in 1969. Purchases had been made since
1967 from established manufacturers. It was for the first
time that an order was apparently wilfully placed in 1969

on a firm which had no capacity whatsoever for the manu-

facture of soluble coffee.

During the period 1967-69, ground coffee was purchased on
orders placed on 7 occassions between February 1987 and

November 1968 and all the orders were placed on this firm

alone for a total quantity of 97.85 tonnes at the cost of

Rs. 7.04 lakhs. Presumably, the purchase of ground coffee
November, 1968. There-

for Defence was stopped after
after this order for the supply of soluble coffee was placed

on the same firm in July 1969. Thus there seems to have
been some exercises of favouritism corruption.

proved for inviting tenders for the supply of soluble coﬁae
|
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Defence

the firm had were (a) a roasting machine, (b) an auto-
matic electrical balance, (c) an equipment for seaming the
containgrs and (d) an equipment for gas packing. ins-
pite of these findings, not only were the supplies .against
the first order accepted by the Chief Director, Purchase
but also a risk purchase contract against the second order
was placed on the same firm.

The Committee consider that a thorough probe into the deals with
this firm is necessary since the facts set out above suggest clearly
that corrupt practices were adopted. Exemplary action ‘shéuld be
taken against the officials involved under advice to the Committee.

The Commmittee have also found serious lapses on the part ot

the Defence authorities as indicated below:

The supplies were despatched to 20 Supply Depots in October
1969 and the warranty period expired on 25th March.
1970. As per standard practice after the despatch instruc-
tions are issued, a random selection is made by Army
Hceadquarters of 20 per cent of the consignee depots who
are asked to send control sampleg for test at the Army
Headgquarters Food Laboratory, Surprisingly, instructions

- to the 4 pelected depots to send control samples in this
case went only on 24th December, 1968. IR ‘the mean-
while, one of the remaining depots sent a sample on its
own on 19th December, 1969. The analysis of this sample
disclosed that the product was more like ground coffee in
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Defence/Agriculture
(Deptt. of Food)
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The Committee would like to know the arbitrator's award on the
claim of Government against the firm in this case. S
The Comimittee have been informed that the Appeal Board con=
sists of Director of Supplies and Transport as the Chairman, the -
dentor and an Army Medical Corps Officer as member, After exsmi-
ning this case the Committee have come to the conclusion that the
functioning of the Appeal Board as it constituted at present is quite
unsatisfactory and it needs to be reconstituted immediately. The
Committee are of the view that the Purchasing Organisation should
not be associated with the Board. Instead Government should con-
sider the advisability of having on the Board a competent food
technologist and associating a representative from the Commodity
Board concerned wherever necessary. It should also be considered
whether there is any particular advantage in procuring tinned food
stuffs for Defence Services through the Ministry of Food and Agri-

culture.

This is yet another case where the purchases against the Defence
requirements were thoroughly mismanaged. Two contracts were
concluded by the Chief Director, Purchase in January and February,
1970 for supply of 15 tonnes apd 30 tonnes of tinned meat by a firm at
the price of Rs, 13,000 per tonne. Normally the requirement is that
the animals should be slaughtered at the firm's premises and before
and after slaughter inspection should be carried out by the Army
Veterinary Officer. On the basis of two representations from two
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firms, including the firm in question, the Chief Director, Purchase
had suggested relaxation of this requirement. This particular firm
had no facilities for slaughter of animals within their factory. The
Army Headquarters readily agreed, as a temporary measure, to allow
the slaughtering of animals in the Municipal Slaughter Houses ins-
pected by Municipal veterinary authorities. It was during this
period that the firm supplied the meat. The representative of the
Ministry of Food admitted during evidence that it was not possible
to ensure that the carcass which was taken away from the Municipal
Slaughter House was the carcass cooked in the factory. ‘The possibi-
lity of substituting a different and inferior meat by unscrupulous
suppliers cannot therefore be ruled out. The Committee find that the
supplies received in February and March, 1970 against the first con-
tract were inspected by the Composite Food Laboratory and the
entire consignment was accepted in April 1970. However, the supply
tendered against the second contract in May/June, 1870 was found
by the Laboratory to be unacceptable. The main reasons for the
rejection were that the stocks were not free from excessive bedy
fat and fascia, that they had objectionable flavourismell and that one
can on incubation indicated evidence of microbial growth.  Fhere-
after on analysis of samples of the supplies aganist the first contraet
it was found that those stocks were also similarly affected and unfit
for human consumption. Action was taken only in November, 1970 to
stop further issues to troops. By then over 9.4 tonnes of this sub-

¥8



14.

1.102

Defence

standard and unhygienic meat had already been consumed..and
claims amounting to Rs. 0,76 lakh only could be preferred agsinst
the contractor. In view of this the Committee regard it as extremely
unwise, if at all it had been done in good faith, to have placed orders
on this firm without verifying the capacity properly and to have
relaxed the requirement of the Army in regard to inspection especia)-
ly when the firm had not made any supply of meat earlier. What
is_more, the risk purchase order for the failure of the firm againat
the second contract was also placed on the same firm and it:again
failed partly. The Committee stress that appropriate action sheuld
be taken in the matter, inter alia, for laying down suitable guidelines
for risk purchase in order to ensure timely supplies.

The Committee have not got any satisfactory explanation why the
Composite Food Laboratory did not notice the defects in the supplies
received against the first contract. They, however, learn that no
observations were made with regard to body fat or fascia by the
Laboratory in this case. Further, although the Depot which received
the bulk of the supplies received the post-capy of the telegram dated
22nd August, 1970 to ‘freeze issues’, strangely enough the Depeot did
not take any action till November, 1970 for reasons known to them.
Such delays in stopping issue of substandard material for consump-
tion could seriously endanger the health of troops. The Committee
require that responsibility should be fixed for these lapses and action

taken reported to them.

&
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Defence/ Agriculture
(Deptt. of Food)

[ efence

The Committee understand that an arbitrator has been appointed
to go intp the claims of the Government as per the Delhi High Court
order and that on legal advice an appeal against the decision of the
High Court hag been filed on 8-10-1973 before the Division Bench.
The Committee would like to know the outcome. They would also
like to know the action taken in regard to recovery of the additienal
expendiure incurred by Government in the repurchase on the failure
of the firm against risk purchase order placed on them. - :

Strengthening of an airfield for operation of certain types of trans-
port and fighter aircraft was taken up through a contractor at a cost
of Rs. 27.67 lakhs in October 1965 and the work was completed in
April, 1988 Although certain ‘minor’ defects were pointed out by the
Garrison Engineer, he certified that the work had been completed
satisfactorily and the completion certificate was issued. Within a
month thereafter a Board of Air Force Officers pointed out certain
defects such as depression at several places, lots of eracks etc. and
the defects excepting the cracks were rectified by the contractor;; In
the meantime, it came to light on tests conducted by the Central
Road Research Institute that there were significant deviations from
specifications. The Engineer-in-Chief informed the Committee that
there were also some deficiencies in the specifications which psttly
accountd for the defects. The Defence Secretary felt that there wes.
deficient supervision. The Committee deprecate these yerious lapses



1134

1.133

in a strategic area ang stress that responsibility should be fixed for
appropriate action under intimation to them. o

The Committee note that the contractor had not agreed to the
recovery of Rs, 72,658 for the varlation from specifications and-that
the mater is being adjudicated by arbitrator. The Committee wonzid
like to be informed of the cutcome of the arbitration proceedings.

The Committee deeply regret to note that extension work on

‘an advance landing ground completed at a cost of about Rs. 21

lakhg in November 1968 proved to be infructuous. The runway
was extended from 1000 yards to 1400 yards. A Board of Officers
which assessed the work in February 1869, noticed defects like
unevenness of surface of the runways, taxi track etc. and depres:
sions, By April 1971, a part of the landing ground, we were told, had
been washed away due to rains with the result that only 800 yarde
were available for aircraft operations. The Committee have been
informed that the remaining strip could be utilised only for opera-
tion of aircraft with limited load by very experienced pilots. A
Technical Board constituted to investigate the quality of the work
done and the reasons for rapid deterioration in the landing ground
had found inadequacies in preliminary investigation and in design
of pavement, lack of technical knowledge at the execution stage, use
of poor quality of construction materials, poor construction of fills,
insufficient|poor drainage etc. The Committee require that Govern-
ment should investigate the matter in the light of the observations
of the Technical Board and fix responsibility for remissness ocn the
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part of the authorities concerned. The action taken in the nﬂuar
may be reported to the Committee. : ;

The Committee note that the possibility of utilising the landing
ground for civil aviation is being considered by the Director General,
Civil Aviation. The Committee would like to be appmed of tht
progress made in this regard.

The Committee regret to find that an excess paymeni of Rs. 11.43
lakhs has been made to an Electric Company from April, 1968 to
March, 1973 due to negligence on the part of officials who failed
to check the bills of the company with reference to the terms.and
conditions of the agreement under which the consumer was entitled
to a special extra discount of 50 per cent for the actual conpmnptiéa
The Committee note that a Board of Officers convened in February,
1973 to fix responsibility has found three officers responsible. The
Committee recommend that appropriate action should be taken
against the erring officers. They would await a report in this regard.

The Committee would also like to know the terms of the settlp-
ment of the dispute between the Department and the Electric: &xppiy

Company.

The Committee note. that in pursuance of the decision taken in

1964 to shift three defence units to another location, a project for

88



provision of storage, technical amd administrative accommodation
for only one unit was sanctioned in August, 1967 and another project
for domestic accommodation of all the three units at a cost of Rs.
71.09 lakhs was sanctioned in October, 1967. While the project for
domestic accommodation was completed in May, 1971 and the service
personnel of the units were shifted to the new site, the construction
of project for provision of storage, technical and administrative
accommodation was suspended in March, 1969 as the question of
sitting the technical and administrative accommodation for all the
units was under review. This review was completed and modifica-
tions to administrative approval was given in November, 1971. The
expenditure sanction was accorded only in January, 1972. The work
commenced in June, 1972 and it was again suspended in August, 1973
due to financial stringency. In the meantime, expenditure is being
incurred on payment of Rs. 12.77 lakhs per annum as rent for the
hired land on which the units continue to be lpocated besides expen-
diture of Rs. 13,000 per month from July, 1971 on transport of officers
till recently. The Committee are not satisfied with the explanation
for the lack of synchronisation of the construction of domestic accom-
modation and the technical and administrative buildings. This
should be possible to a far greater extent than is suggested. by the
Ministry’s spokesman. Between 1967 and 1969, what extra-ordinary
development took place which made it imperative to suspend action
on portions of the project on which work had not commence? And
then it was over two and half years later, six months after the
domestic accommodation had been completely constructed, the

68
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approval was given to necessary modifications in the scheme, All
this could have been avoided, if it were well intentioned and had
those taking the decision to suspend action had satisfied themselves
hefore taking the decision that the modifications necessary were of
such vital significance that they would outweigh the financial loss
invelved in suspension.

Admittedly the present procedures are not satisfactory. The
Committee desire that the Study Group appeinted by the Ministry
to suggest improvement in the procedures should speedily complete
their study and that steps should be taken to cut out avoidable =
Jelays in future. In the meantime, the Committee trust that the
remaining work will be completed expeditiously. ‘
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